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Marger & Aequisltion

NEE duoring their ousite supervision, has { We evalmied (he. adequacy of the dischosue
dirceted the compamy to underpe merper or | egardimg the merger end  poguisition in the
acquisition with Deprosc Micrafinance Lid. “fingnziel simtemesm,

Other Informestion

Management iS respomtible for the preparation of olher informaticn. The other inftrmation
comptises the information incleded io the Annual Report but does pot include the finemeial
statentents amd our auditor’s mport therean,

Chir opinton on the financia] staterrents does not cover the ather information and we do not
express any form of assorance cotclusion theréon,

Dhr responsitdibity is to read the Other Information and, in doing so, consider wheiher the
Crther Informiation is materially inconsisienr with the financiol sttements or our knowledge
obiained in the conessé of our sudit or oiberwdse appears 1o he materially onzststed. IE Kased
am the work we have perfomaed, we concluds that them p 3 material misstatement of this
other information, we are requrred to repost that Fact. We hava nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Mansgement-sod Those Charged with Governamee fir e Finaacial
Statements

h-ianagﬁment is responsible for the prepardion and Tain preseniztion of the financial
statements in accerdance with NFRS and for such internal control 83 management dettrmindy
is necessiry b enabla the preparation of the financial statoments that are frec from materisl
misstatemnent, whesher due (o frand or emor.

In prepaning the financial stalements, rmanugsrent s responsihle for agsessing the company™s
abllity to continge as geing conecm, discloving as applicable the multers related Lo going
eoncern snd using the golog concern hasts of sccousting unless the management either
intengds be Fauidate the cormpany o Lo cease aperations of his ne realistie ahternateve bat to di
w0, Those charged with governanees are rsponsible for overseelng the company’a tinancial
TEPOTHTLE Provess.

Anditor’s Responasihifltles for the Amdit of the Finsacinl Statemezts

Cnur chjectives 3 1o obtain reasonable assueance about whether the financial statemems as a
whale are free from material misstaternent, whether dug w0 fruwd or ermor and 1o issws an
auditoF's_report thal Inelodes oot apinion. Reasonabie assurance is a high level of sssurance
but iz not 2 guarantee that an audit conducted in accérdunct with NSAs will alwrys detict 3
maerial missiatement when il exists,

As pazi of an andit in decordanee with NSAS we exencise professtonsl Judgment and maimain
professtonal skepuetam throughaut the andit. We also:

»  Identify ard assess the dsks of matenal misslatement uf the I'nam::al staterments, whether
duc to friud or etror, destgn and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks and
obtain audit evldence that is sufficlent and appropriate 1o provide & basis for pur apinicn
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= {ibtam an understanding of imernal control relevant to the audit in order to design awdit
procedures that are sppropriate in the eircumstances.

»  Eyalwite the appropdatencss of accououng policiss used apd the rcasonableness of
acconnting estmades and related disclosures mmade by mansEemet.

= Concinde. on the. appropriateness of management's use of poing concarn besls of
aceaunting,

n Ewvalugte the overall prosentation, structure and comtent of the financial staréments,
including the disclosures and whiether the financial statements represent the nnderying
transkctions and events in a manber that achieves fair presentation.

Repory on Orber 1egal and Regulafory Reqoiremcnis

We bave delermined to conmunicate [ollowing matiers in accordanse with the reguirsments
of NRB Direetives, Companies Act 2063, BAFTA 2073 and other regulatory requiremsats.

* We have obtained uli the information snd the explanation which to the best of our
kiirwledge and belief, where neceszary for the purpese of our audit,

+ Based en our audit, proper books of acconnt as required by law have been kept by the
COATYpanY.

+ Retoros received from the branch offices of the company were-adequate for the purposts
of our audit theagh the statements are independently oot audiled.

«  The capital fund, risk bearlng fand and the provisions for passible impetement of assets
of the compahny are adaquite considering the Directives issued by Nepal Rasira Bank.

»  In our opinion and te the best of our information and aceording ta the explanations and
fiom aur examinaiion of the boaks of acoounts of the company we have not come 2033
any case where the Boerd of Direcinrs or -any office bearsr of the company have anted
comeary 1o the provisions of Jaw, or committed any misappropristion ar céused any foss
or damage Lo the company and violaeed Directives f=sved hy Nepal Rastra Bank or scted
i A manner, a5 would jeopardize the imterest and -security of the ocompany, its

_shareholders and its depositors.

*  The bustness of the company has beco condudded satisfectorly and operated within irs

Jurigdiction and has been functioning as per NRB Directives,

¢aGiyanendia B. Bhati
Parnet

UDIN: 21 1028C AQ0ToMGpp
Date: 289 Qctober 2021
Plage: Kathmandu, Mepal
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NADEP Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd.
Statement of Financial Position

As on 31st Ashad 2078

Notes 31 Ashadh 2078 31 Ashad 2077
Particulars
Assets
Cash and cash equivalent 4.1 210,951,595 568,069,394
Due from Nepal Rastra Bank 4.2 - -
Placement with Bank and Financial 4.3 - -
Derivative financial instruments 4.4 - -
Other trading assets 4.5 - -
Loan and Advances to B/Fls 4.6 - -
Loans and advances to customers 4.7 4,557,296,219 4,363,417,280
Investment in securities 4.8 2,000,000 2,000,000
Current Tax Assets 4.9 - -
Investment in subsidiaries 4.10 - -
Investment in Associates 4.11 - -
Investment property 4.12 - -
Property and equipment 4.13 10,070,031 12,439,199
Goodwill and Intangible Assets 4.14 844,507 1,126,010
Deferred tax assets 4.15 31,554,257 34,689,061
Other assets 4.16 37,050,004 43,492,896
Total Assets 4,849,766,613 5,025,233,840
Liabilities
Due to Bank and Financial Institutions 4.17 _ _
Due to Nepal Rastra Bank 4.18 - -
Derivative Financial instruments 4.19 - -
Deposit from customers 4.20 1,544,247,636 1,362,020,911
Borrowings 4.21 1,972,706,877 2,514,126,214,
Current Tax Liabilities 4.9 50,329,490 -
Provisions 4.22 - -
Deferred tax liabilities 4.15 - -
Other liabilities 4.23 411,870,467 342,675,454
Debt securities issued 4.24 - -
Subordinated Liabilities 4.25 - -
Total liabilities 3,979,154,470 4,218,822,580
Equity
Share Capital 4.26 404,800,000 368,000,000
Share Premium - 31,344,311
Retained Earning 214,726,618 131,316,868
Reserves 4.27 251,085,525 275,750,081
Total equity attributable to equity holders 870,612,143 806,411,260
Non-controlling interests - -
Total equity 870,612,143 806,411,260
Total liabilities and equity 4,849,766,613 5,025,233,840
Contingent liabilities and commitment 4.28 11,303,806 9,494,088
Net assets value per share 215.07 219.13
Anish Paneru Upendra Bahadur Karki Madhav Pradhan Bibek Kandel
Chief Finance Officer Chief Executive Officer Director Director

Hari krishna Subedi
Director

Sofiya Acharya (Rimal)
Director

Pitambar Prasad Acharya
Chairman

Date: 10-07-2078
Place: Gajuri, Dhading

Bed Prasad Shiwakoti

Director

C.A. Gynandra Bahadur Bhari
B.R.S. Neupane & Co.
Chartered Accountants
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NADEP Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd.
Statement of Profit or Loss
For the year ended 31 Ashad 2078

Notes 2077-78 2076-77
NPR NPR

Interest Income 4.29 647,514,416 770,820,376
Interest Expense 4.30 (275,291,636) (392,701,057)
Net interest income 372,222,780 378,119,319
Fees and Commission Income 4.31 70,018,381 62,094,081
Fees and Commission Expense 4.32 616,252 3,386,154
Net fee and Commission income 69,402,129 58,707,927
Net interest fee and commission 441,624,909 436,827,246
income
Net Trading Income 4.33 -
Other Operating Income 4.34 (479,185) (9,547)
Total oEerating income 441,145,724 436,817,699
Impairment charge/(reversal) for loans 4.35 3,639,089 65,179,893
and other losses
Net Operating income 437,506,635 371,637,806
Operating expenses
Personal Expense 4.36 216,350,120 182,411,875
Other Operating Expenses 4.37 64,725,130 53,014,449
Depreciation and amortisation 4.38 3,423,385 4,377,107
OEerating Profit 153,007,999 131,834,376
Non operating income 4.39 191,526 40,113
Non operating expense 4.40 (6,769,380) -
Profit before income tax 146,430,145 131,874,489
Income tax expense 4.41 85,655,975 (3,250,521)

Current tax 89,063,690 8,690,796

Deferred tax income (3,407,716) (11,941,317)
Profit for the period 60,774,170 135,125,010
Profit attributable to:
Equity holders of the bank 60,774,170 135,125,010
Non-controlling interest -
Profit for the period 60,774,170 135,125,010
Earnings per share:
Basic earnings per share 15.01 36.72
Diluted earnings per Share 15.01 36.72
Anish Paneru Upendra Bahadur Karki Madhav Pradhan Bibek Kandel
Chief Finance Officer Chief Executive Officer Director Director

Sofiya Acharya (Rimal)
Director

Pitambar Prasad Acharya
Chairman

Date: 10-07-2078
Place: Gajuri, Dhading

Hari krishna Subedi
Director

Bed Prasad Shiwakoti

Director

C.A. Gynandra Bahadur Bhari
B.R.S. Neupane & Co.
Chartered Accountants
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NADEP Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd.
Statement of Cash Flows
As on 31st Ashad 2078
2077-78 2076-77
NPR NPR

Cash flows from operating activities
Interest Received 744,727,479 639,902,207
Fee and other income received

Dividend Received

Receipts from other operating activities

Interest paid

Commission and fee paid

Cash payments to employee

Other expense paid

Operating cash flows before change in operating assets and liabilities

(Increase)/Decrease in operating assets

Due from Nepal Rastra Bank

Placement with bank and financial institutions

Other Trading assets

Loan and advances to bank and financial institutions
Loan and advances to customer

87,687,583

(268,187,538)
(616,252)
(200,180,867)

(65.204,315.42)

62,134,194

(351,518,080)
(3,386,154)
(167,822,517)
(40,057,835)

298,226,090
(314,020,632)

(322,826,692)

139,251,814
(220,346,810)

(219,383,042)

Other Assets 8.806.060 (963,768)
Increase/(Decrease) in operating liabilities (299,879,501) 440,799,327
Due to bank and financial institutions - -
Due to Nepal Rastra Bank - -
Deposits from customers 182,226,725 229,322,965
Borrowings (541,419,337) 211,476,362
Other Liabilities 59,313,111 -
Net Cash flow from operating activities before tax paid (315,674,043) 359,704,331
Income taxes paid (38,734,200) (8,569,098)
Net Cash flow from operating activities (354,408,243) 351,135,233
Cash flows from investing activities

Purchase of investment securities - -
Receipts from sale of investment securities - -
Purchase of plant and equipment (772,714) (792,878)
Receipt from sale of property and equipment - (60,547)
Purchase of intangible assets - 268,616
Receipt from sale of intangible assets

Purchase of investment properties - -
Receipt from the sale of investment properties

Interest received

Dividend received

Net cash used in investing activities (772,714) (584,809)
Cash flows from financing activities

Receipt from issue of debt securities - -
Repayment of debt securities

Receipt from issue of subordinated liabilities - -
Repayment of subordinated liabilities

Receipt from issue of shares - -
Dividend paid (1,936,842) -
Interest paid - -
Other receipt/payment - -
Net cash from financing activities (1,936,842) -
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (357,117,799) 350,550,424
Cash and Cash Equivalents at Shrawan 01 (Beainning of the Year) 568,069,394 217,518,970
Effect of exchange rate fluctuations on cash and cash equivalents held - -
|Closing Cash and Cash Equivalents 210,951,595 568,069,394
Anish Paneru Upendra Bahadur Karki Madhav Pradhan Bibek Kandel

Chief Finance Officer Chief Executive Officer Director Director

Sofiya Acharya (Rimal) Hari Krishna Subedi
Director Director Director

Pitambar Prasad Acharya
Chairman

C.A. Gynandra Bahadur Bhari
B.R.S. Neupane & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Date: 10-07-2078

Place: Gajuri, Dhading

Bed Prasad Shiwakoti
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NADEP Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd.
Statement of Distributable Profit or Loss
As on 31st Ashad 2078
(As per NRB Regulation)

Particulars 31 Ashadh 2078 31 Ashadh 2077
Net profit or (loss) as per statement of profit or loss 60,774,170 135,125,010
Appropriations:

a. General reserve (34,254,284) (370,543)

b. Foreign exchange fluctuation fund -
c. Capital redemption reserve -

d. Corporate social responsibility fund (1,606,188) (18,527)
e. Employees' training fund -

f. Other (2,671,451) (18,527)
Profit or (loss) before regulatory adjustment 22,242,248 134,717,413
Regulatory adjustment :

a. Interest receivable (-)/previous accrued interest received (+) 62,180,018 (81,159,276)

b. Short loan loss provision in accounts (-)/reversal (+) -
c. Short provision for possible losses on investment (-)/reversal (+) -
d. Short loan loss provision on Non Banking Assets (-)/reversal (+) -
e. Deferred tax assets recognised (-)/ reversal (+) (2,617,884) -
f. Goodwill recognised (-)/ impairment of Goodwill (+) - -
g. Bargain purchase gain recognised (-)/resersal (+) - -

h. Acturial loss recognised (-)/reversal (+) 15,265,879 2,155,066

i. Other (+/-)

Distributable profit or (loss) 97,070,260 55,713,202
Anish Paneru Upendra Bahadur Karki Madhav Pradhan Bibek Kandel
Chief Finance Officer Chief Executive Officer Director Director
Sofiya Acharya (Rimal) Hari krishna Subedi Bed Prasad Shiwakoti

Director Director Director
Pitambar Prasad Acharya C.A. Gynandra Bahadur Bhari
Chairman B.R.S. Neupane & Co.

Chartered Accountants

Date: 10-07-2078
Place: Gajuri, Dhading
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NADEP Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd.
Statement of Other Comprehensive Income
For the year ended 31 Ashad 2078

Notes

2077-78
NPR

2076-77
NPR

Profit for the period

Other comprehensive income, net of income tax

a) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
® Gains/(losses) from investment in equity instruments
measured at fair value

® Gains/(losses) on revaluation

® Acturial gain/(losses) on defined benefit plans

® Income tax relating to above items

Net other comprehensive income that will not be
reclassified to profit or loss

b) Items that are or may be reclassified to profit or loss
® Gains/(losses) on cash flow hedge

® Exchange gains/(losses)(arising from translating financial
assets of foreian operation)

® Income tax relating to above items

® Reclassify to profit or loss

Net other comprehensive income that are or may be
reclassified to profit or loss

c) Share of other comprehensive income of associate
accounted as per equity method

Other comprehensive income for the period, net of
Total comprehensive income for the period

60,774,170

21,808,398
(6,542,519)
15,265,879

15,265,879
76,040,049

135,125,010

3,078,665
(923,600)
2,155,066

2,155,066
137,280,075

Total comprehensive income attributable to:
Equity holders of the Bank
Non-controlling interest

76,040,049

137,280,075

|[Total Comprehensive income for the period

76,040,049

137,280,075

Anish Paneru
Chief Finance Officer

Upendra Bahadur Karki
Chief Executive Officer

Binod Kumar Sharma
Director

Sofiya Acharya (Rimal)
Director

Pitambar Prasad Acharya
Chairman
Chartered Accountants

Date: 10-07-2078
Place: Gajuri, Dhading

Pravin Bhattrai
Director

Hari krishna Subedi

Director

C.A. Gynandra Bahadur Bhari
B.R.S. Neupane & Co.

Bibek Kandel
Director

Bed Prasad Shiwakoti
Director
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NADEP Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 Ashad, 2078

General Information

NADEP Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited (referred to as “the Bank” hereinafter) is a “D” class bank
domiciled in Nepal, registered as a Public Limited Company under Companies Act 2063 & Banking
and Financial Institution Act, 2073. The registered address of the Bank is located at Gajuri, Dhading,
Nepal. Its financial transaction started from Jestha 1, 2072 after the approval from Nepal Rastra Bank
as D class microfinance on Baisakh 7, 2072.

Basis of Preparation

The Financial statements of the Bank have been prepared on accrual basis of accounting in
accordance with Nepal Financial Reporting Standards (NFRS) as published by the Accounting
Standards Board (ASB) Nepal and pronounced by The Institute of Chartered Accountants of Nepal
(ICAN).

The financial statements comprise the Statement of Financial Position, Statement of Profit or Loss,
Statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the Statement of Changes in Equity, the Statement of
Cash Flows and the Notes to the Accounts.

Statement of Compliance

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Nepal Financial Reporting
Standards (NFRS) issued by the Accounting Standards Board of Nepal on 13 September 2013.

NFRS conform, in all material respect, to International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as issued
by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB).

Reporting Period and Approval of financial statement
The Bank follows the Nepalese financial year based on the Nepalese calendar.

The accompanied financial statements have been approved by the Board of Directors on its meeting
held on 2078/07/10 and have been recommended for adoption by shareholders in the Annual
General Meeting.

Functional and Presentation currency

Financial statements are denominated in Nepalese Rupees, which is the functional and presentation
currency of the Bank. All financial information presented in NPR has been rounded off to the nearest
rupee except where indicated otherwise.

Use of Estimates, assumption and judgments

The Bank, under NFRS, is required to apply accounting policies to most appropriately suit its
circumstances and operating environment. Further, the Bank is required to make judgement in
respect of items where the choice of specific policy, accounting estimate or assumption to be
followed could materially affect the financial statements. Later on, this may be determined that a
different choice could have been more appropriate.

NFRS requires the Bank to make estimates and assumptions that will affect the assets, liabilities,
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities, and profit or loss as reported in the financial
statements.

The Bank applies estimates in preparing and presenting the financial statements. The estimates and
underlying assumptions are reviewed periodically. Revision to accounting estimates are recognised
in the period in which the estimates is revised, and are applied prospectively.
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Disclosures of the accounting estimates have been included in the relevant section of the notes
wherever the estimates have been applied along with the nature and effect of changes of accounting
estimates, if any.

2.4.1 Going Concern

The financial statements are prepared on a going concern basis, as the Bank is satisfied that the Bank
has the resources to continue in business for the foreseeable future. In making this assessment, the
Board of Directors have considered a wide range of information relating to present and future
conditions, including future projections of profitability, cash flows and capital resources.

25 Changes in Accounting policies

The Bank had adopted NFRS for the first time in current year. There has been no significant change
in the accounting policies adopted by the bank except where required due to adoption of Nepal
Financial Reporting Standards.

2.6 Reporting Pronouncements

The Bank has, for the preparation of financial statements, adopted the NFRS pronounced by ASB as
effective on 13 September, 2013. The NFRS conform, in all material respect, to International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRS) as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB).

Subsequently, ICAN vide its notice dated 10 November 2020 has resolved that Carve-outs in NFRS
with Alternative Treatment and effective period shall be provided to the Banks and Financial
Institutions regulated by NRB on the specific recommendation of ASB.

2.6.1 NAS17:Lease

In para 33, lease payments under an operating lease shall be recognized as an expense on a straight-
line basis over the lease term unless either:

a) Another systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern of the user’s benefit even if
the payments to the lessors are not on that basis; or

b) The payments to the lessor are structured to increase in line with expected general inflation to
compensate for the lessor’s expected inflationary cost increases. If payments to the lessor vary
because of factors other than general inflation, then this condition is not met.

Bank as a lessee

Leases that do not transfer to the Bank substantially all of the risks and benefits incidental to
ownership of the leased items are operating leases. Operating lease payments are recognized as an
expense in the income statement on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Bank as a lessor

Leases where the Bank does not transfer substantially all of the risk and benefits of ownership of the
asset are classified as operating leases. Rental income is recorded as earned based on the contractual
terms of the lease in other operating income.

2.6.2 NAS 39: Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement
a) Impairment

In para 58, an entity shall assess at the end of each reporting period whether there is any
objective evidence that a financial asset or group of financial assets measured at amortized cost
is impaired. If any such evidence exists, the entity shall apply paragraph 63 to determine the
amount of any impairment loss unless the entity is Bank or financial institutions registered as
per Bank and Financial Institutions Act, 2073. Such entities shall measure impairment loss on
loan and advances as the higher of amount derived as per norms prescribed by Nepal Rastra
Bank for loan loss provision and amount determined as per paragraph 63; and shall apply
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paragraph 63 to measure the impairment loss on financial assets other than loan and advances.
The entity shall disclose the impairment loss as per this carve-out and the amount of impairment
loss determined as per paragraph 63.

b) Impracticability to determine transaction cost of all previous years which is the part of
effective interest rate

In para 9, the effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
payments or receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument or, when appropriate,
a shorter period to the net carrying amount of the financial asset or financial liability. When
calculating the effective interest rate, an entity shall estimate cash flows considering all
contractual terms of the financial instrument (for example, prepayment, call and similar options)
but shall not consider future credit losses. The calculation includes all fees and points paid or
received, unless it is immaterial or impracticable to determine reliably, between parties to the
contract that are an integral part of the effective interest rate (see NAS 18 Revenue), transaction
costs and all other premiums or discounts. There is a presumption that the cash flows and the
expected life of a group of similar financial instruments can be estimated reliably. However, in
those rare cases when it is not possible to estimate reliably the cash flows or the expected life
of a financial instrument (or group of financial instruments), the entity shall use the contractual
cash flows over the full contractual term of the financial instrument (or group of financial
instruments).

The carve out has been provided for the FY 2019-20 and 2021-22. Accordingly, the Bank has
opted the carve out.

c) Impracticability to determine interest income on amortized cost

In para AG 93, once a financial asset or a group of similar financial assets has been written down
as a result of an impairment loss, interest income is thereafter recognized using the rate of
interest used to discount the future cash flows for the purpose of measuring the impairment
loss. Interest income shall be calculated by applying effective interest rate to the gross carrying
amount of a financial asset unless the financial asset is written off either partially or fully.

The carve out is optional and has been provided for the FY 2019-20 and 2020-21. Accordingly,
the Bank has opted the carve out.

2.6.3 NAS 28: Investment in Associates and Joint Ventures

In Para 33, the most recent available financial statements of the associate or joint venture are used
by the entity in applying the equity method.

In Para 35, the entity’s financial statements shall be prepared using uniform accounting policies for
like transactions and events in similar circumstances.

Bank doesn’t have any associate and joint venture during the reporting period.
2.7 New Standards in Issue but not yet Effective

For the reporting of financial instruments, NAS 32 Financial Instruments, Presentation, NAS 39
Financial Instruments Recognition and Measurements and NFRS 7 Financial Instruments -
Disclosures have been applied. NRFS 9 has been complied for the classification of Financial
Instruments.

A number of new standards and amendments to the existing standards and interpretations have
been issued by IASB after the pronouncements of NFRS with varying effective dates. Those become
applicable when ASB Nepal incorporates them within NFRS. In this connection, ASB has issued
Exposure Draft of Nepal Financial Reporting Standards (NFRSs) 2018. NFRSs 2018 is yet to be
pronounced by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Nepal.
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NFRSs 2018 introduced following standards which is applicable to the Bank:

2.8

2.9

2.10

3.1

3.2

33

» NFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers: The standard shall supersede existing NAS 18
Revenue and NAS 11 Construction Contract.

» NFRS 16 Leases: It shall supersede NAS 17 Leases, IFRIC 4 Determining whether an Arrangement
contains lease, SIC-15 Operating Lease — Incentives and SIC-27 Evaluating the Substance of
Transactions Involving the Legal Form of a Lease

New Standards and Interpretation not Adapted

The following new standards are not mandatory and have not been early adopted by the Bank even
the Bank is currently assessing the impact of these amendments in impairment of risk assets:

1. IFRS 9: Financial Instruments’-Impairment

2. IFRS 15: Revenue from contract with customer
3. IFRS 16: Leases

Discounting

Discounting has been applied where assets and liabilities are non-current and the impact of the
discounting is material.

Limitation of NFRS implementation

If the information is not available and the cost to develop would exceed the benefit derived, such
exception to NFRS implementation has been noted and disclosed in respective section.

Significant Accounting Policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out
below. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise
stated.

Basis of Measurement

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for available—for-sale
investments, assets held for sale and discontinued operations, other financial assets and liabilities
held for trading and financial assets and liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss
(FVTPL), all of which have been measured at fair value.

The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis where the accounting policies
and judgements as required by the standards are consistently used and in case of deviations
disclosed specifically.

Basis of Consolidation

The Bank does not have control over any other entity for consolidation of Financial Statements.
Investments in Shares made by the Bank are financial investments and have been described under
4.8 in Notes.

Cash & Cash Equivalent

The fair value of cash is the carrying amount. Cash and cash equivalent represent the amount of cash
in hand, balances with other bank and financial institutions, money at short notice and highly liquid
financial assets with original maturities of three months or less from the acquisition date that are
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in their value and used by the Bank in the management of
short-term commitment. Cash and cash equivalents are presented in the carrying value in the
statement of financial position.



TG gl e @R I Y

3.4
3.4.1

3.4.2

Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities
Recognition

Financial assets and liabilities, with the exception of loans and advances to customers and balances
due to customers, are initially recognised on the trade date i.e. the date that the Bank becomes a
party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. This includes regular way trades: purchases or
sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time frame generally established by
regulation or convention in the market place. Loans and advances to customers are recognised when
funds are transferred to the customers’ account at fair value inclusive of transaction costs. The Bank
recognises due to customer balances when funds reach the bank.

Classification
The Bank classifies its financial assets into the following measurement categories:
v Financial assets and liabilities held for trading

The Bank classifies financial assets or financial liabilities as held for trading when they have been
purchased or issued primarily for short term profit making through trading activities or form part
of a portfolio of financial instruments that are managed together for which there is evidence of
a recent pattern of short-term profit taking. Included in this classification are Government
bonds, NRB Bonds, Domestic Corporate bonds, Treasury bills, Equities etc. held primarily for the
trading purpose.

v Financial assets and financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets and financial liabilities classified in this category are those that have been
designated by management upon initial recognition. Management may only designate an
instrument at FVTPL upon initial recognition when one of the following criteria are met, and
designation is determined on an instrument-by-instrument basis:

e The designation eliminates, or significantly reduces, the inconsistent treatment that would
otherwise arise from measuring the assets or liabilities or recognising gains or losses on
them on a different basis
Or

e The assets and liabilities are part of a group of financial assets, financial liabilities, or both,
which are managed, and their performance evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance
with a documented risk management or investment strategy
Or

e The financial instrument contains one or more embedded derivatives, unless they do not
significantly modify the cash flows that would otherwise be required by the contract, or it
is clear with little or no analysis when a similar instrument is first considered that separation
of the embedded derivative(s) is prohibited.

v'  Loans and receivables to Customers

After initial measurement, loans and advances to customers are subsequently measured at
amortisation over the period of loan. This practice is almost nearer to the effective interest
method prescribed by NFRS. The method has been adopted as the cost for computation for
interest on effective interest method is huge in terms of benefits to be received from the
computation in the short run.

v'  Held-to-maturity

Held-to-maturity assets are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments
and fixed maturities that the Bank’s management has the intention and ability to hold to
maturity.



(4

@IS aifdes weTZoT @9

3.43

3.44

v Available-for-sale.

Available-for-sale assets are those non-derivative financial assets intended to be held for an
indefinite period of time, which may be sold in response to liquidity requirements or changes in
interest rates, exchange rates, commodity prices or equity prices.

v' Financial liabilities held at amortised cost

Financial liabilities not classified held at fair value through profit or loss includes borrowings
which are classified as amortised cost instruments.

Measurement
v' Initial measurement

All financial instruments are initially recognised at fair value plus transaction cost except in the
case of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded at fair value through profit or loss.

v' Subsequent measurement

Financial assets and liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss are subsequently
carried at fair value, with gains and losses arising from changes in fair value taken directly to the
statement of profit or loss. Interest and dividend income or expense is recorded in revenue
according to the terms of the contract, or when the right to payment has been established.

Available-for-sale financial assets are subsequently carried at fair value, with gains and losses
arising from changes in fair value taken to Other Comprehensive Income. The Bank makes
irrevocable election to route fair value changes through Other Comprehensive Income.
Gain/Loss on equity instruments classified as fair value through other comprehensive income is
charged directly to equity and impact of re-measurement is shown in OCI.

Loans and receivables and held-to-maturity financial assets are subsequently measured at
amortised cost. Within this category loans and advances to the customers have been recognised
at amortised cost using the method that very closely approximates effective interest rate
method. The losses arising from impairment of such investments are recognised in the income
statement within credit loss expense. If the Bank were to sell or reclassify more than an
insignificant amount of held-to-maturity investments before maturity (other than in certain
specific circumstances), the entire category would be tainted and would have to be reclassified
as available-for-sale.

Financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost, with any difference between
proceeds net of directly attributable transaction costs and the redemption value recognised in
the statement of profit or loss over the period of the borrowings using the effective interest
method.

De-recognition

De-recognition of Financial Assets

The Bank derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the
financial asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction
in which substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred or

in which the Bank neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
and it does not retain control of the financial asset.

De-recognition of Financial Liabilities

Financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or
expired. Where an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on
substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an
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3.4.5

3.4.6

exchange or modification is treated as a de-recognition of the original liability and the recognition of
a new liability. The difference between the carrying value of the original financial liability and the
consideration paid is recognized in Statement of Profit or Loss.

Determination of Fair Value

Assets and liabilities carried at fair value or for which fair values are disclosed have been classified
into three levels according to the observability of the significant inputs used to determine the fair
values. Changes in the observability of significant valuation inputs during the reporting period may
result in a transfer of assets and liabilities within the fair value hierarchy. The Bank recognises
transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy when there is a significant change in either its
principal market or the level of observability of the inputs to the valuation techniques as at the end
of the reporting period.

Level 1 fair value measurements are those derived from unadjusted quoted prices in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2 valuations are those with quoted prices for similar instruments in active markets or quoted
prices for identical or similar instruments in inactive markets and financial instruments
valued using models where all significant inputs are observable.

Level 3 portfolios are those where at least one input, which could have a significant effect on the
instrument’s valuation, is not based on observable market data.

Impairment of Loans and Advances

At each reporting date the Bank assesses whether there is any indication that an asset may have
been impaired. If such indication exists, the recoverable amount is determined. A financial asset or a
group of financial assets is impaired and impairment losses are incurred if, and only if, there is
objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events occurring after the initial
recognition of the asset (a loss event), and that loss event (or events) has an impact on the estimated
future cash flows of the financial asset or group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated.

The Bank considers the following factors in assessing objective evidence of impairment:
»  Whether the counterparty is in default of principal or interest payments.

» When a counterparty files for bankruptcy and this would avoid or delay discharge of its
obligation.

» Where the Bank initiates legal recourse of recovery in respect of a credit obligation of the
counterpart.

» Where the Bank consents to a restructuring of the obligation, resulting in a diminished financial
obligation, demonstrated by a material forgiveness of debt or postponement of scheduled
payments.

» Where there is observable data indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated
future cash flows of a group of financial assets, although the decrease cannot yet be identified
with specific individual financial assets.

The Bank considers evidence of impairment for loans and advances and held-to-maturity investment
securities at both a specific asset and collective level. All individually significant loans and advances
and investment securities measured at amortized cost are assessed for specific impairment. Those
found not to be specifically impaired are then collectively assessed for any impairment that has been
incurred but not yet identified.

Loans and advances and investment securities measured at amortized cost that are not individually
significant are collectively assessed for impairment by grouping together loans and advances and
investment securities measured at amortized cost with similar risk characteristics. Impairment test
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is done on annual basis for trade receivables and other financial assets based on the internal and
external indication observed.

In assessing collective impairment, the Bank uses statistical modelling of historical trends of the
probability of default, the timing of recoveries and the amount of loss incurred, adjusted for
management’s judgment as to whether current economic and credit conditions are such that the
actual losses are likely to be greater or less than suggested by historical trends. Default rates, loss
rates and the expected timing of future recoveries are regularly benchmarked against actual
outcomes to ensure that they remain appropriate.

Impairment losses on assets measured at amortized cost as per NAS 39

3.4.7

Financial assets carried at amortized cost (such as amounts due from Banks, loans and advances to
customers as well as held—to—maturity investments are impaired, and impairment losses are
recognized, only if there is objective evidence as a result of one or more events that occurred after
the initial recognition of the asset. The amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the
asset's carrying amount and the deemed recoverable value of loan.

Loans and advances to customers has insignificant value. Therefore, all loans are subject to collective
impairment. These loans that are individually assessed and for which no impairment exists are
grouped with financial assets with similar credit risk characteristics and collectively assessed for
impairment. The credit risk statistics for each group of the loan and advances are determined by
management prudently being based on the past experience. For the purpose of collective assessment
of impairment Bank has categorized assets in two products as follows:

a. Agriculture Loan

b. Service Loan

Provision as per NFRS

Particulars 2076 2077 2078
Individual

Collective 161,269,648 166,081,069 143,585,997
Total NFRS Provision 161,269,648 166,081,069 143,585,997
Provision as per NRB

Particulars 2076 2077 2078
Good 39,241,444 33,201,776 18,461,868
Watchlist 979,905 14,246,319 180,693
Re-structure - -

Sub-standards 6,341,668 319,201 119,965
Doubtful 39,350,659 47,573,977 130,669
Bad 75,554,140 104,642,253 158,533,919
Additional 26,664,183 52,859,685
Total NRB Provision 161,467,816 226,647,709 230,286,798
Gap/(Excess) 198,168 60,566,639 86,700,801

As stated in table above, the bank loans and advances are greater considering the NRB directive as
compared to NFRS impairment provisioning. Therefore, provisioning as per NRB directive is applied.

Impairment of Equity Instruments

The Bank also records impairment charges on equity investments when there has been movement
in the fair value.

Refer Note 4.8 for details.
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3.4.8

3.5

3.6

3.7

Impairment of Non-Financial Assets

The Bank assesses whether there are any indicators of impairment for an asset or a cash generating
unit (CGU) at each Reporting date or more frequently, if events or changes in circumstances
necessitate to do so. This requires the estimation of the ‘Value in use’ of such individual assets or the
CGUs. Estimating ‘Value in use requires the Management to make an estimate of the expected future
cash flows from the asset or the CGU and also to select a suitable discount rate in order to calculate
the present value of the relevant cash flows. This valuation requires the Bank to make estimates
about expected future cash flows and discount rates and hence, they are subject to uncertainty.

Derivatives Assets and Derivative Liabilities
Bank doesn’t deal with any derivative financial instruments.
Property and Equipment

All property and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.
Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the assets.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or are recognised as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the Bank and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance
are charged to the statement of profit or loss during the financial period in which they are incurred.

Freehold land is not depreciated although it is subject to impairment testing. Depreciation on other
assets is calculated using the written down value method to allocate their cost to their residual values
over their estimated useful lives. Depreciation rate used for the calculation of depreciation are as
follows:

»  Computer and Accessories 25%
»  Furniture and Fixtures 25%
»  Machinery and Equipment 15%
»  Office Equipment 25%
»  Vehicles 25%
»  Leasehold 20%
»  Other Assets 25%

The assets residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each
statement of financial position date. The value of the assets fully depreciated but continued to be in
use is considered not material. The bank has adopted WDV basis for the F/Y 2077/078

At each reporting daste, assets are also assessed for indicators of impairment. In the event that an
asset’s carrying amount is determined to be greater than its recoverable amount, the asset is written
down immediately to the recoverable amount.

Assets with costs less than NPR 3,000 are charged off on purchase as revenue expenditure.
Gains and losses on disposals are included in the Statement of Profit or Loss.

Intangible assets

Acquired Intangible Assets

Intangible assets are initially measured at fair value, which reflects market expectations of the
probability that the future economic benefits embodied in the asset will flow to the Bank and are
amortised on the basis of their expected useful lives.
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3.8

3.9
3.9.1

3.9.2

3.10

3.11

Computer software

Acquired computer software licences are capitalised on the basis of the costs incurred to acquire and
bring to use the specific software. Costs associated with the development of software are capitalised
where it is probable that it will generate future economic benefits in excess of its cost. Computer
software costs are amortised over the period of 5 years in Straight Line method (SLM). Costs
associated with maintaining software are recognised as an expense as incurred.

At each reporting date, these assets are assessed for indicators of impairment. In the event that an
asset’s carrying amount is determined to be greater than its recoverable amount, the asset is written
down immediately.

Investment Property

Land or Land and Building other than those classified as property and equipment and non-current
assets held for sale under relevant accounting standard are presented under this account head. The
Non-Banking Assets acquired by the company is classified as assets held for sale and presented under
investment property.

Further land which is rented and held for capital appreciation motive is classified as investment
property. Non-Banking Assets which are not intended to be sold within a period of next one year is
also classified as Investment Property. The bank does not have any investment property.

Investment property of the bank is presented under Schedule 4.12.
Income Tax
Current tax

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior years are measured at the amount expected
to be recovered from, or paid to, the taxation authorities of Nepal. The tax rates and tax laws used
to compute the amount are those that are enacted, or substantively enacted, by the reporting date
in Nepal. The liabilities recognised for the purpose of current Income tax, including fees, penalties
are included under this head.

Deferred Tax Liabilities

Deferred tax is provided in full, using the liability method, on temporary differences arising between
the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. Deferred income tax is determined using tax rate applicable to the Bank as at the
reporting date which is expected to apply when the related deferred income tax asset is realised or
the deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognised where it is probable that future taxable profit will be available
against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

Deferred tax relating to items which are charged or credited directly to equity, is credited or charged
directly to equity and is subsequently recognised in the statement of profit or loss together with the
deferred gain or loss.

Deposits, Debt securities issued and subordinate Liabilities

The deposits held by the bank on behalf of its customers are classified as financial liabilities and
measured at amortised cost under effective interest method. The bank does not have any debt
securities issued and subordinated liabilities.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised in respect of present obligations arising from past events where it is
probable that outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligations and they can be reliably
estimated.
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3.12

3.12.1

3.12.2

3.12.3

3.124

3.125

Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Bank and the revenue can be reliably measured. The following specific recognition criteria must also
be met before revenue is recognised.

Interest Income

Interest income on available-for-sale assets and financial assets held at amortized cost shall be
recognized using the Bank’s normal interest rate which is very close to effective interest rate using
effective interest rate method.

For income from loans and advances to customers, initial charges are not amortized over the life of
the loan and advances as the income so recognized closely approximates the income that would have
been derived under effective interest rate method. The difference is not considered material. The
Bank considers that the cost of exact calculation of effective interest rate method exceeds the benefit
that would be derived from such compliance.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortized cost of a financial asset or a
financial liability and of allocating the interest income or interest expense over the relevant period.
The effective interest rate is the rate that discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts
through the expected life of the financial instrument or, when appropriate, a shorter period, to the
net carrying amount of the financial asset or financial liability. When calculating the effective interest
rate, the Bank estimates cash flows considering all contractual terms of the financial instrument (for
example, prepayment options) but does not consider future credit losses. As per the Carve-out
Notice issued by ICAN, the calculation includes all fees paid or received between parties to the
contract that are an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and all other
premiums or discounts unless it is immaterial or impracticable to determine reliably, between parties
to the contract that are an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and all other
premiums or discounts.

The Bank recognizes NPR (98,698,441) as the interest income on loans and advances during F/Y
2077/78 due to collection of earlier years Accrued Interest Receivables as per Guideline on
Recognition of Interest Income, 2019.

Fees and commissions

Fees and commissions are generally recognised on an accrual basis when the service has been
provided or significant act performed. Service Fee Income/Expenses are recognized on accrual basis
unless it is impracticable to recognize as allowed through carve-out on NFRS.

Dividend Income

Dividend income is recognised when the Bank’s right to receive the payment is established, which is
generally when the shareholders approve the dividend.

Net Trading Income

Net trading income includes all gains and losses from changes in fair value and the related interest
income or expense and dividends, for financial assets and financial liabilities held for trading.

Net income from other financial instrument at fair value through Profit or Loss

Gains and losses arising from changes in the fair value of financial instruments designated at fair
value through profit or loss are included in the statement of profit or loss in the period in which they
arise. Contractual interest income and expense on financial instruments held at fair value through
profit or loss is recognised within net interest income.
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3.13 Interest Expense
For all financial instruments measured at amortised cost, interest bearing financial assets classified
as available-for-sale and financial instruments designated at FVTPL, interest expense is recorded
using the EIR unless it is impracticable.

3.14 Employee Benefits

3.14.1 Retirement Benefits
The Bank has schemes of retirement benefits namely Gratuity, Provident Fund.
Retirement benefit obligations
The bank operates a defined contribution plans as provident fund contribution.
Provident Fund
For Provident Fund, the bank pays contributions to the publicly administered provident fund plans
(named Employee Provident Fund) on a mandatory basis, and such amounts are charged to operating
expenses. The bank has no further payment obligations once the contributions have been paid.
Gratuity
The bank has been providing gratuity as per its employees’ by-laws which is in the nature of defined
benefit plan therefore actuarial valuation has been conducted and provided accordingly.
The new Labour Act 2074 is applicable from Bhadra 19, 2074 which requires payment of minimum
Gratuity of at least 8.33% of basic salary to all staff (equal to one-month salary per year). The bank
has not yet decided for the revision of its Employees Byelaws as per New Labour Act. Further, byelaws
also need to be approved from the regulator. Gratuity benefit is provided as per actuarial valuation
computed on the basis of employee byelaws.
Explanatory Notes
Gratuity benefit obligations, plan assets, movement in gratuity liability & fair value of assets etc.
related with long term employee benefits has been presented under schedule 4.23.1 A.
Accumulated Leave
The Bank provides accumulated leave benefit under its staff byelaw. The Home Leave is accumulated
up to 60 days and there is no limit for the accumulation of Sick Leave.
Accumulated leave benefits are treated as long term benefit liability. Accumulated leave obligations
are estimated on the basis of actuarial Valuation. Long term benefit liability is not subject to same
degree of uncertainty as defined benefit plan. Therefore, re-measurement gain/(loss) on
accumulated leave is charged to Profit and Loss account as on Ashad end 2077.
The bank has no further payment obligations once the contributions have been paid.

3.14.2 Staff Bonus
Provision for bonus has been made at 10% of profit before such bonus.

3.15 Leases
Lease payments under an operating lease shall be recognized as an expense on a straight-line basis
over the lease term unless another systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern of the
user’s benefit even if the payments to the lessors are not on that basis.

3.16  Foreign Currency Translation

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the NPR using the exchange rates prevailing at the
dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such
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3.17

3.18
3.18.1

3.18.2

transactions and from translation at year end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in the profit or loss, except when recognised in
other comprehensive income. Non-monetary assets that are measured at fair value are translated
using exchange rate at the date that fair value was determined.

Financial Guarantee and Loan Commitment

In the ordinary course of business, the Bank issues performance guarantees, bid bond guarantees
and advance payment guarantee. These guarantees are initially disclosed in the financial statement
(within ‘contingent liabilities’) at guaranteed value. The premium received is recognised in the
statement of profit or loss in net fees and commission income on a straight-line basis over the life of
the guarantee.

Share Capital and Reserves
Share Capital

Financial instruments issued are classified as equity when there is no contractual obligation to
transfer cash, other financial assets or issue available number of own equity instruments.
Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares are shown in equity as deduction
net of taxes from the proceeds.

Dividends on ordinary shares classified as equity are recognised in equity in the period in which they
are declared.

The share issue expenses which can be avoided for the issue was charged in the year of issue directly
through equity and disclosed in statement of changes in equity. Tax impact is also disclosed.

Reserves
The reserves include regulatory and free reserves.
v"  General Reserve

20% of the net profit and 50% of excess of 20% of dividend is set aside to general reserve until
the reserve is twice the paid of share capital as per Banking Financial Institutions Act. The reserve
is the accumulation of setting aside profits over the years.

No Dividend (either cash dividend or bonus share) are distributed from the amount from
General/ Statutory Reserve.

v" Exchange Equalisation Reserve

25% of the revaluation gain on foreign currency is set aside to exchange equalisation reserve as
per Banking Financial Institutions Act.

The Reserve is cushion against adverse movement in foreign currency.
v' Assets Revaluation Reserve

Any Reserve created from revaluation of assets (such as Property & Equipment, Intangible
Assets, Investment Property) shall be presented under this heading. The Bank has followed cost
model therefore no assets revaluation reserve is created.

v'  Capital Reserve

The capital reserve represents the amount of those reserves which are in nature of capital and
which shall not be available for distribution of cash dividend. The amount from share forfeiture
due to non-payment of remaining amount for the unpaid shares, capital grants received in cash
or kind, capital reserve arising out of merger and acquisition etc are presented under this
heading.
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Special Reserve

Any special reserve that is created as per the specific requirement of NRB directive or special
instruction of NRB are represented as special reserve. The amount allocated to this reserve by
debiting retained earning account are presented under this heading.

Corporate Social Responsibility Fund

The fund created for the purpose of corporate social responsibility by allocating 1% of Net profit
as per NRB Directive is presented under this account head.

Client Protection Fund

The fund created for the purpose of client protection by allocating 1% of Net profit and 25% of
excess of 20% of dividend as per NRB Directive is presented under this account head.

Employee Training Fund

The fund created for the purpose of employee training by allocating 3% of employee expenses
of previous year excluding staff bonus and winding up interest cost on staff loan. The fund is
utilized for the training of employees.

Investment Adjustment Reserve

It is a reserve created on investment such as investment in subsidiary or unlisted investment in
equity for more than two years as per the investment directive of Nepal Rastra Bank.

Regulatory Reserve

The amount that is allocated from profit or retained earnings of the Bank to this reserve as per
the Directive of NRB for the purpose of implementation of NFRS and which shall not be regarded
as free for distribution of dividend (cash as well as bonus shares) shall be presented under this
account head. The regulatory reserve of the bank includes the reserve net of tax created relating
to Accrued Interest Receivable as on Ashad End 2078 not recovered till Shrawan End 2078,
Reserve on Deferred Tax Assets, Non-Banking Assets, reduction in fair value of investment in
equity below cost price, actuarial loss etc.

Fair Value Reserve

The amount that is allocated from profit or retained earnings of the Bank to this reserve as per
the Directive of NRB for the purpose of implementation of NFRS and which shall not be regarded
as free for distribution of dividend (cash as well as bonus shares) shall be presented under this
account head. The fair value reserve of the bank includes the reserve net of tax created relating
to Market Value of Share investment.

Actuarial Gain/(Loss) Reserve

The amount that is allocated from profit or retained earnings of the Bank both positive or
negative to this reserve as per the Directive of NRB for the purpose of implementation of NFRS
and which shall not be regarded as free for distribution of dividend (cash as well as bonus shares)
shall be presented under this account head. This reserve includes actuarial gain/(loss) net of tax
on defined benefit plan and long-term employee benefits.

Other reserve

Any reserve created with specific or non-specific purpose (except stated in above) are presented
under thus by disclosing accounting heads.
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3.19

3.20

3.21

Earnings per share

The Bank measures earning per share on the basis of the earning attributable to the equity
shareholders for the period. The number of shares is taken as the weighted average number of
shares for the relevant period as required by NAS 33 - Earnings Per Share.

There are no instruments, such as convertibles, that would require dilution of EPS, therefore diluted
EPS has not been computed and disclosed.

Segmental Reporting

The Bank’s segmental reporting is in accordance with NFRS 8 Operating Segments. Operating
segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the bank’s
management, which is responsible for allocating resources and assessing performance of the
operating segments. All transactions between business segments are conducted on an arm’s length
basis, with intra-segment revenue and costs being eliminated in Head Office. Income and expenses
directly associated with each segment are included in determining business segment performance.

The Bank has determined segments based on the district of operation by the management for
decision making purpose. Such segmental information has been provided under Disclosures &
Additional Information (Point No. 5.3).

No revenue from transactions with a single external customer or counterparty amounted to 10% or
more of the bank’s total revenue in any of the periods reported.

Interim Financial Reporting

Interim reports corresponding to the financial statements had been reported in accordance with the
regulatory reporting requirements. Those statements have been published quarterly in national level
newspaper. The bank has utilized the benefits provided by Carve-out on NFRS for reinstatement of
earlier year figures.
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Schedules to Financial Statement

4.1 Cash and cash equivalent

Particulars

31-03-2078 31-03-2077

Cash in Hand

Balances with B/Fis

Money at call and short notice
Other

5,197,708
115,955,641
446,916,045

4,672,629
51,526,279
154,752,687

Total

210,951,595 568,069,394

4.2 Due from Nepal Rastra Bank

Particulars

31-03-2078 31-03-2077

Statutory balances with NRB
Securities purchased under resale agreement
Other deposit and receivable from NRB

Total

4.3 Placements with Bank and Financial Institutions

[[Particulars

31-03-2078 31-03-2077

Placement with domestic B/Fls
Placement with Foreign B/Fls
Less: Allowances for impairement

[[Total

4.4 Derivative Financial Instruments

Particulars

31-03-2078 31-03-2077

Held for trading
Interest rate swap
Currency Swap
Forward exchange contract
Others

Held for risk management
Interest rate swap
Currency Swap
Forward exchange contract
Others

Total

4.5 Other Trading assets

Particulars

31-03-2078 31-03-2077

Treasury Bills
Government bond

NRB bonds

Domestic Corporate bonds
Equities

Other

Total

Pledged
Non- Pledged

4.6 Loans and advances to B/Fls

[[Particulars

31-03-2078 31-03-2077

Loan to Microfinance Institutions
Other
Less: Allowances for Impairment

[[Total




4.6.1 Allowances for Impairment

Particulars 31-03-2078 2075-76

Balance as at Shrawan 1 -
Impairment loss for the year:
Charge for the year -
Recoveries/Reversal
Amount written off

Balance as at Ashad end -

4.7 Loans and advances to customers

[[Particulars 31-03-2078 31-03-2077

Loans and advances measured at amortized cost 4,787,583,017 4,590,064,988
Less: Impairment allowances
Individual Impairment -

Portfolio Impairment (230,286,798) (226,647,709)
Net amount 4,557,296,219 4,363,417,280
Loan and advances measured at FVTPL -

(Total 4,557,296,219 4,363,417,280

4.7.1 Analysis of loan and advances - By product

Particulars 31-03-2078 31-03-2077

Product
Term Loans
Overdraft
Trust Receipt/Import Loans
Demand and other Working Capital Loans
Personal Residential Loans
Real Estate Loans
Margin Lending Loans
Hire Purchase Loans
Deprived Sector Loans
Bills Purchased
Staffs Loans

Other
Sub-total -
Interest Receivable 176,347,154
Grand Total 176,347,154

4.7.2 Analysis of loan and advances - By Currency

[[Particulars 31-03-2078 31-03-2077

Nepalese Rupee 176,347,154
Indian Rupee

United States Dollar

Great Britain Pound

Euro

Japanese Yen

Chinese Yuan

Other

Grand Total 176,347,154
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4.7.3 Analysis of loan and advances - By Collateral

Particulars 31-03-2078 31-03-2077
Secured

Moveable/Immoveable Assets

Gold and Silver

Guarantee of Domestic BFls

Government Guarantee

Guarantee of International Rated Bank

Collateral of Export Document

Collateral of Fixed Deposit Receipt

Collatereal of Government Securities

Counter Guarantee

Personal Guarantee

Other Collateral
Sub Total - -
Unsecured - -
[[Grand Total - -

4.7.4 Allowances for Impairment

Particulars 31-03-2078 31-03-2077
Specific allowances for impairment
Balance at Shrawan 1 - -
Impairment loss for the year: - -
Charge for the year - -
Recoveries/reversal during the year
Write- offs - -
Exchange rate variance on foreign currency
Other movement
Balance at Ashad end - -
Collective allowances for impairment
Balance at Shrawan 1
Impairment loss for the year: - -
Charge/(reversal) for the year
Exchange rate variance on foreign currency - -
Other movement - -
Balance at Ashad end - -
Total allowances for impairment - -

4.8 Investment in securities

Particulars 31-03-2078 31-03-2077
Investment securities designated at FVTPL -
Investment securities measured at amortized cost -
Investment in equity measured at FVTOCI 2,000,000 2,000,000
Total 2,000,000 2,000,000

4.8.1 Investment in securities measured at amortized cost

Particulars 31-03-2078 31-03-2077
Debt Securities - -
Government Bond - -
Government treasury bills - -
Nepal Rastra Bank bonds - -
Nepal Rastra Bank deposit instruments - -
Other

Less: Specific allowances for impairment - -
[[Total - -
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4.8.2 Investment in equity measured at fair value through other Other comprehensive incon
Particulars 31-03-2078 31-03-2077
Equity Instrument
Quoted equity securities - -
Unquoted equity securities 2,000,000 2,000,000
Total 2,000,000 2,000,000
4.8.3 Information relating to investment in equities
31-03-2078 31-03-2077
Particulars Fair Value Cost Fair Value2
Investment in quoted equity
Subtotal - - -
Investment in Unquoted equity
1|Nepal Finsoft Co.
2,000 share of Rs. 100 each 2,000,000 2,000,000 2,000,000
Subtotal 2,000,000 2,000,000 2,000,000 2,000,000
Grand Total 2,000,000 2,000,000 2,000,000 2,000,000
4.9 Current tax Assets/Liability
Particulars 31-03-2078 31-03-2077
Current tax assets 36,722,521 8,690,796
Current year Income Tax Assets 36,722,521 8,690,796
Tax Assets of Prior Periods
Current tax liabilities 87,052,011 8,690,796
Current year Income Tax Liabilities 87,052,011 8,690,796
Tax Liabilities of Prior Periods -
87,052,011 8,690,796
Total of income tax assets/(liabilities) (50,329,490) -
4.10 Investment In subsidiaries
Particulars 31-03-2078 31-03-2077

Investment in Quoted Subsidiaries
Investment in Unquoted Subsidiaries
Total Investment

Less: Impairment Allowances

Net Carrying Amount
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4.10.1 Investment In quoted subsidiaries

Particulars 31-03-2078 31-03-2077
Cost Fair Value Cost Fair Value
.................... Ltd
........Shares of Rs.... Each - - - -
.................... Ltd
........shares of Rs.... Each - - - -
Total - - - -
4.10.2 Investment In unquoted subsidiaries
Particulars 31-03-2078 31-03-2077
Cost Fair Value Cost Fair Value

........shares of Rs.... Each

Total

4.10.3 Information relating to subsidiaries of the bank

Particulars

Percentage of owneship

31-03-2078

31-03-2077

4.10.4: Non Controlling Interest of the Subsidiaries

Group
31-03-2078

Equity Interest held by NCI (%) 0.00%
Profit (Loss) allocated during the year -
Accumulated Balances of NCI as on Ashad End -
Dividend Paid to NCI -

31-03-2077
Equity Interest held by NCI (%) 0.00%

Profit (Loss) allocated during the year -
Accumulated Balances of NCI as on Ashad End -

Dividend Paid to NCI
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4.11 Investment In associates

Particulars |

31-03-2078

31-03-2077

Cost Fair Value

Cost Fair Value

Investment in Quoted associates
Investment in Unquoted associates
Total Investment

Less: Impairment Allowances

Net Carrying Amount

4.11.1 Investment In quoted associates

Particulars

31-03-2078

31-03-2077

Cost Fair Value

Cost Fair Value

........ shares of Rs.... Each

........ shares of Rs.... Each

4.11.2 Investment In unquoted associates

31-03-2078

31-03-2077

Particulars

Cost Fair Value

Cost Fair Value

Total

4.11.3 Information relating to associates of the bank

Percentage of owneship

Particulars 31-03-2078 31-03-2077
4.11.4: Equity value of associates
i Group
Particulars 31-03-2078 31-03-2077
4.12 Investment Properties
Particulars | 31-03-2078 31-03-2077 31-03-2076

Investment Properties measured at Fair Value

Balance as on Shrwawan 01
Addition/(Disposal) during the year

Net Changes in fair value during the year
Adjustment/Transfer

Net Amount

Investment Properties measured at Cost

Balance as on Shrwawan 01
Addition/(Disposal) during the year
Adjustment/Transfer

Accumulated depreciation
Accumulated impairment loss

Net Amount

Total
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4.14 Goodwill and Intangible Assets

Software
Particulars Goodwill Purchased Developed Other Total Ashad end
Cost
Balance as on Ashad end 2076 - 3,122,150 - 3,122,150
Addition during the Year - - -
Acquisition - 84,750 - 84,750
Capitalization - - -
Disposal during the year - - -
Adjustment/Revaluation - - -
Balance as on Ashad end 2077 3,206,900 - 3,206,900
Addition during the Year -
Acquisition - -
Capitalization -
Disposal during the year -
Adjustment/Revaluation -
Balance as on Ashad end 2078 3,206,900 - 3,206,900
Amortisation and Impairment
As on Ashad end 2076 1,727,524 - 1,727,524
Impairment for the year - - -
Amortisation charge for the year - 353,366 - 353,366
Disposals - - -
Adjustment - - -
As on Ashad end 2077 - 2,080,890 - 2,080,890
Impairment for the year -
Amortisation charge for the year 281,502 281,502
Disposals -
Adjustment -
As on Ashad end 2078 - 2,362,393 - 2,362,393
Capital Work in Progress
Net Book Value
As on Ashad end 2076 - 1,394,626 - 1,394,626
As on Ashad end 2077 - 1,126,010 - 1,126,010
As on Ashad end 2078 - 844,507 - 844,507
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4.15 Deferred Taxes Assets/(Liabilities)

31-03-2078
Particulars Deferred Tax Deferred Tax Net Deferred
Assets Liabilities Tax Assets
/ (Liabilities)
Deferred tax on temporary differences on following
items - - -
Loans and Advances to BFls - - -
Loans and Advances to Customers - - -
Investment Properties - - -
Investment Securities - - -
Investment In Associates - - -
Property and Equipment 248,144 248,144
Employees' Defined Benefit Plan 26,195,926 26,195,926
Employees' Leave Liability 5,903,332 - 5,903,332
Lease Liabilities - - -
Provisions LLP (793,144) - (793,144)
Other Temporary Differences -
Deferred tax on temporary differences 31,306,114 248,144 31,554,257
Deferred tax on carry forward of unused tax losses - - -
Deferred tax due to changes in tax rate - - -
Net Deferred Tax Asset (Liabilities) as on year end of 2077/78 31,554,257
Deferred Tax (Asset)/ Liabilities as on Shrawan 01, 2078 -
Origination/(Reversal) during the year 31,554,257
Deferred Tax (expense)/income recognized in profit or loss 3,407,716
Deferred Tax (expense)/income recognized in Other Comprehensive Income (6,542,519)

Deferred Tax (expense)/income recognized directly in equity

4.16 Other Assets

Particulars 31-03-2078 31-03-2077
Assets held for Sale - -
Other Non-Banking Assets - -
Bills Receivable - -
Accounts Receivable 1,167,192 699,226
Accrued Income - -
Prepayments and Deposits 29,090 598,871
Income Tax Deposit -
Deferred Employee Expenditure 7,758,071 7,967,530
Inter Branch Account
Staff Advance 2,945,845 4,205,528
Other 25,149,807 30,021,741
Stationery Stock 625,539 133,658
Deposit 20,850 51,610
Others -
Office Advance - (2,480)
Citizens Investment Trust 24,503,418 23,116,432
Advance Tax - 6,722,521
i. Tax paid - 15,291,619
ii. Tax liability for the year - (8,569,098)
Grand Total 37,050,004 43,492,896
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4.17 Due to Bank and Financial Institutions

Particulars

31-03-2078

31-03-2077

Money Market Deposits

Interbank Borrowing

Other Deposits from BFIs
Settlement and Clearing Accounts
Other Deposits from BFIs

Total

4.18 Due to Nepal Rastra Bank

Particulars

31-03-2078

31-03-2077

Refinance from NRB

Standing Liquidity Facility

Lender of Last Resort facility from NRB
Securities sold under repurchase agreements
Other Payable to NRB

Total

4.19 Derivative Financial instruments

Particulars

31-03-2078

31-03-2077

Held for Trading
Interest Rate Swap
Currency Swap
Forward Exchange Contracts
Others

Held for Risk Management
Interest Rate Swap
Currency Swap
Forward Exchange Contracts.
Others

Total

4.20 Deposits from customers

Particulars

31-03-2078

31-03-2077

Institutions Customers:
Term deposits
Call deposits
Current deposits
Other
Individual Customers:
Term deposits
Saving deposits
Current deposits
Other

1,544,247,636

1,544,247,636

1,362,020,911

1,362,020,911

Total

1,544,247,636

1,362,020,911
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4.20.1 Currency wise analysis of deposit from customers

Particulars

31-03-2078

31-03-2077

Nepalese Rupee
Indian Rupee
United State dollar
Great Britain pound
Euro

Japenese yen
Chinese Yuan

1,544,247,636

1,362,020,911

Other - -
Total 1,544,247,636 1,362,020,911
4.21 Borrowings

Particulars 31-03-2078 31-03-2077

Domestic Borrowing

Nepal Government

Other Institutions

Other

Sub total

Foreign Borrowing

Foreign Bank and Financial Institutions
Multilateral Development Banks

Other institutions

1,972,706,877
1,972,706,877

2,514,126,214
2,514,126,214

Sub total -
Total 1,972,706,877 2,514,126,214
4.22 Provisions

Particulars 31-03-2078 31-03-2077
Provisions for redundancy - -
Provision for restructuring - -
Pending legal issues and tax litigation - -
Onerous contracts - -
Other - -
Total - -
4.22.1 Movement in Provisions

Particulars 31-03-2078 31-03-2077

Balance at Sawan 1

Provisions made during the year
Provisions used during the year
Provisions reversed during the year
Unwind of discount

Balance at Ashad end
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4.23 Other Liabilities

Particulars 31-03-2078 31-03-2077
Liabilities for emloyees defined benefit obligations 111,129,680 119,629,412
Liabilities for leave 18,987,379 19,081,075
Provident fund - -
Short term employee benefits 2,382,558 2,366,992
Bills payable - -
Creditors and accruals 14,933,497 7,133,888

Interest payable on deposits
Interest payable on borrowing
Liabilities on defered grant income
Unpaid Dividend

230,050,851

182,301,020

Employee bonus payable 26,747,850 4,504,274
Inter branch account -
Other Liabilities 7,638,652 7,658,794
Audit Fee Payable -
TDS Payable 1,482,411 2,904,127
Liabilities under Operating Lease -
Members Insurance -
Members Protection -
Insurance premium -
Provision on cash balance with sick B/Fis 254,667 254,667
Provision on Debtors - -
Staff Residence fund 4,500,000 4,500,000
Cattle Insurance Amount -
Others 1,401,574 -
Total 411,870,466 342,675,454
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4.23.1. A Defined Benefit Obligation

The amounts recognised in the statements of financials positions are as follows :

Particulars 31-03-2078 31-03-2077
Present value of unfunded obligations 123,381,389 131,187,628
Present value of funded obligations - -
Total present value of obligations 123,381,389 131,187,628
Fair value of plan assets 12,251,709 11,558,216
Present value of net obligations 111,129,680 119,629,412
Recognised liability for defined benefit obligations 111,129,680 119,629,412
4.23.2: Plan Assets

Plan assets comprise

Particulars 31-03-2078 31-03-2077
Equity securities - -
Government bonds - -
Bank deposit - -
Other 12,251,709 11,558,216
Total 12,251,709 11,558,216
4.23.3: Movement in the present value of defined benefit obligations

Particulars 31-03-2078 31-03-2077
Defined benefit obligations at Shrawan 1 131,187,628 121,285,662
Actuarial losses -22328518 (3,564,758)
Benefits paid by the plan (4,817,956) (6,287,889)
Current service costs; Past Service Cost and interest 19,340,235 19,754,613
Defined benefit obligations at Ashad end 123,381,389 131,187,628
4.23.4: Movement in the fair value of plan assets

Particulars 31-03-2078 31-03-2077
Fair value of plan assets at Shrawan 1 11,558,216 10,802,071
Contributions paid into the plan 693,493 756,145
Benefits paid during the year - -
Actuarial (losses) gains (520,120) (486,093)
Expected return on plan assets 520,120 486,093
Fair value of plan assets at Ashad end 12,251,709 11,558,216
4.23.5: Amount recognised in profit or loss

Particulars 2077/78 2076/77
Current service costs 13,228,377 14,060,945
Past service costs-(non Vested)

Past service costs (Vested)

Interest on obligation 6,111,858 5,693,668
Expected return on plan assets (520,120) (486,093)
Total 18,820,115 19,268,520
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4.23.6: Amount recognised in other comprehensive income
Bank

Particulars 2077/78 2076/77
Acturial (gain)/loss (21,808,398) (3,078,665)
Total (21,808,398) (3,078,665)
4.23.7: Actuarial assumptions
Particulars 2077/78 2076/77
Discount rate 5.0% 4.5%
Expected return on plan asset 5.0% 4.5%
Future salary increase 3% 3%
Withdrawal rate 3.5% 3.5%
4.23.1. B Long Term Benefit Obligation
The amounts recognised in the statements of financials positions are as follows :
Particulars 31-03-2078 31-03-2077
Present value of unfunded obligations 31,239,088 30,639,291
Present value of funded obligations -
Total present value of obligations 31,239,088 30,639,291
Fair value of plan assets 12,251,709 11,558,216
Present value of net obligations 18,987,379 19,081,075
Recognised liability for defined benefit obligations 18,987,379 19,081,075
4.23.2: Plan Assets
Plan assets comprise
Particulars 31-03-2078 31-03-2077
Equity securities -
Government bonds -
Bank deposit -
Other 12,251,709 11,558,216
Total 12,251,709 11,558,216
4.23.3: Movement in the Long Term Benefit Plan
Particulars 31-03-2078 31-03-2077
Defined benefit obligations at Shrawan 1 30,639,291 27,013,031
Actuarial losses (1,484,580) 2,479,878
Benefits paid by the plan (709,509) (1,189,173)
Current service costs; Past Service Cost and interest 2,793,886 2,335,555
Defined benefit obligations at Ashad end 31,239,088 30,639,291
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4.23.4: Movement in the fair value of plan assets

Particulars 31-03-2078 31-03-2077
Fair value of plan assets at Shrawan 1 11,558,216 10,802,071
Contributions paid into the plan 693,493 756,145
Benefits paid during the year
Actuarial (losses) gains (520,120) (486,093)
Expected return on plan assets 520,120 486,093
Fair value of plan assets at Ashad end 12,251,709 11,558,216
4.23.5: Amount recognised in profit or loss
Particulars 2077/78 2076/77 m
Current service costs 1,281,526 1,129,853
Past service costs-(non Vested)
Past service costs (Vested)
Acturial (gain)/loss (964,460) 2,965,971
Interest on obligation 1,512,360 1,205,702
Expected return on plan assets (520,120) (486,093)
Total 1,309,306 4,815,433
4.23.6: Amount recognised in other comprehensive income

Bank
Particulars 2077/78 2076/77
Acturial (gain)/loss (964,460) 2,965,971
Total (964,460) 2,965,971
4.23.7: Actuarial assumptions
Particulars 2077/78 2076/77
Discount rate 5.0% 4.5%
Expected return on plan asset 5.0% 4.5%
Future salary increase 3% 3%
Withdrawal rate 3.5% 3.5%
4.24 Debt secutities issued
Particulars 31-03-2078 31-03-2077
Debt securities issued designated as at fair value
through profit or loss -
Debt securities issued at amortised cost -
Total - -
4.25 Subordinate Liabilities
Particulars 31-03-2078 31-03-2077

Redeemable preference shares

Irredemable cumulative preference shares (liabilities
component)

Other

Total
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4.26 Share Capital
Particulars 31-03-2078 31-03-2077
Ordinary Shares 404,800,000 368,000,000
Convertible Preference Shares (Equity component) -
Irredemable Preference Shares (Equity component) -
Perpetual debt (Equity component only) -
Total 404,800,000 368,000,000
4.26.1 Share capital detail
Particulars 31-03-2078 31-03-2077
Authorised capital
64,00,000 Ordinary Share of Rs. 100 each 640,000,000 640,000,000
Issued Capital
160,00,000 Ordinary Share of Rs. 100 each (FY 2074-75)
368,00,000 Ordinary Share of Rs. 100 each (FY 2075-76)
3680000 Ordinary Share of Rs. 100 each (FY 2076-77) 368,000,000
4048000 Ordinary Share of Rs. 100 each (FY 2077-78) 404,800,000
Suscribed and paid up capital
160,00,000 Ordinary Share of Rs. 100 each (FY 2074-75)
368,00,000 Ordinary Share of Rs. 100 each (FY 2075-76)
368,00,000 Ordinary Share of Rs. 100 each (FY 2076-77) 368,000,000
368,00,000 Ordinary Share of Rs. 100 each (FY 2077-78) 404,800,000
Total 404,800,000 368,000,000
4.26.2 Ordinary Share Ownership
Particulars 31-03-2078
% of holding No. of Shares Amount
Domestic ownership 100.00% 4,048,000 404,800,000
Nepal Government
"A" Class licenced institutions 25.00% 1,012,000 101,200,000
Other Licenced institutions 10.00% 404,800 40,480,000
Other institutions & individuals 35.00% 1,416,800 141,680,000
Public 30.00% 1,214,400 121,440,000
Other 0.00% - -
Foreign Ownership
Total 100% 4,048,000 404,800,000
List of Shareholders holding more than 0.5% shares
Shareholder's Name No. Share Share Amounts Rs. | Percentage
Nabil Bank Limited 1,012,000.00 101,200,000.00 25.00
DEPROSC-Nepal 1,012,000.00 101,200,000.00 25.00
Lumbini Bikash Bank Limited 404,800.00 40,480,000.00 10.00
CEAPRED Nepal 50,600.00 5,060,000.00 1.25
Jamuna Krishna Tamrakar 25,300.00 2,530,000.00 0.63
Upendra Bahadur Karki 25,300.00 2,530,000.00 0.63
Devendra Pratap Shah 25,300.00 2,530,000.00 0.63
Pitambar Prasad Acharya 20,240.00 2,024,000.00 0.50
Bed Prasad Shiwakoti 20,240.00 2,024,000.00 0.50
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Paid up share capital of the Bank has moved over the years as follows:

Financial Year Cumulative Paid Up|Remarks
72 Ashad 112,000,000.00
73 Ashad 112,000,000.00

Issue of Bonus Share -
74 Ashad 112,000,000.00

Public Issue 48,000,000.00

Issue of Bonus Share -
75 Ashad 160,000,000.00

Issue of Right Share 160,000,000.00

Issue of Bonus Share 48,000,000.00
76 Ashad 368,000,000.00

Issue of Bonus Share 36,800,000.00
77 Ashad 404,800,000.00

Issue of Bonus Share 80,960,000.00
78 Ashad 485,760,000.00
78 Ashad 485,760,000.00
4.27 Reserves

Particulars 31-03-2078 31-03-2077 31-03-2076

Statutory general reserve 70,415,839 36,161,556 35,791,013
Exchange equilisation reserve - -
Corporate social responsibility reserve 1,606,188 1,339,387 1,371,860
Capital redemption reserve - -
Regulatory reserve 99,144,716 166,365,363 84,743,268
Investment adjustment reserve - -
Capital reserve - -
Assets revaluation reserve - -
Fair value reserve - -
Dividend equalisation reserve -
Actuarial gain (4,544,040) (19,809,918) (21,964,984)
Special reserve -
Staff Training Fund 8,609,318 8,609,318 8,609,318
Client protection fund 75,853,503 83,084,376 6,345,935
Total 251,085,525 275,750,081 114,896,410
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4.28 Contingent liabilities and commitments

Particulars

31-03-2078

31-03-2077

Contingent liabilities

Undrawn and undisbursed facilities
Capital commitment

Lease Commitment

Litigation

11,303,806

9,494,088

Total

11,303,806

9,494,088

4.28.1: Contingent Liabilities

Particulars

31-03-2078

31-03-2077

Acceptance and documentary credit
Bills for collection

Forward exchange contracts
Guarantees

Underwriting commitment

Other commitments

Total

4.28.2: Undrawn and undisbursed facilities

Particulars

31-03-2078

31-03-2077

Undisbursed amount of loans
Undrawn limits of overdrafts
Undrawn limits of credit cards
Undrawn limits of letter of credit
Undrawn limits of guarantee

Total

4.28.3: Capital commitments

Capital expenditure approved by relevant authority of the bank but provision has not been

Particulars

31-03-2078

31-03-2077

Capital commitments in relation to
Property and Equipment

Approved and contracted for
Approved but not contracted for

Sub total

Capital commitments in relation to
Intangible assets

Approved and contracted for
Approved but not contracted for

Sub total

Total
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4.28.4: Lease commitments

Particulars

31-03-2078

31-03-2077

Operating lease commitments

Future minimum lease payments under
non cancellable
operating lease, where the bank is lessee
Not later than 1 year
Later than 1 year but not later than 5
years
Later than 5 years
Sub total

Finance lease commitments
Future minimum lease payments under
non cancellable operating lease, where the
bank is lessee

Not later than 1 year

Later than 1 year but not later than 5
years

Later than 5 years

Sub total

Grand total

4.28.5: Litigation

Particulars

31-03-2078

31-03-2077

Litigation pending in court against the
salary of the staff who have been on illegal
strike.

11,303,806

9,494,088
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4.29 Interest Income

Particulars

2077-78

2076-77

Cash and cash equivalent

Due from Nepal Rastra Bank

Placement with bank and financial institutions

Loan and advances to bank and financial institutions
Loans and advances to customers

Investment securities

Loan and advances to staff

Other Interest Income

1,238,460

644,790,578

1,485,379

8,382,954

24,895,269
735,448,231

2,093,921

Total interest income

647,514,416

770,820,376

4.30 Interest Expense

Particulars

2077-78

2076-77

Due to bank and financial institutions
Due to Nepal Rastra Bank

Deposits from customers

Borrowing

Debt securities issued

Subordinated liabilities

Other Charges

110,662,631
157,524,907

7,104,098

25,374,246

82,884,263
278,029,271

6,413,277

Total Interest expense

275,291,636

392,701,057

4.31 Fees and commission income

Particulars

2077-78

2076-77

Loan administration fees

Service fees

Consortium fees

Commitment fees

DD/TT/Swift fees

Credit card/ATM issuance and renewal fees
Renewal fees

Prepayment and swap fees

Investment banking fees

Asset management fees

Brokerage fees

Remittance fees

Commission on letter of credit
Commission on guarantee contracts issued
Commission on share underwriting/issue
Locker rental

Other fees and commision income

62,282,932

7,735,449

62,094,081

Total Fees and Commission Income

70,018,381

62,094,081
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4.32 Fees and commission Expense

Particulars 2077-78 2076-77
ATM management fees
VISA/Master card fees
Guarantee commission
Brokerage
DD/TT/Swift fees.
Remittance fees and commission 616,252 3,386,154
Other fees and commission expense - -
CIC Fees - -
Deposit Premium - -
Mobile Banking Expenses - -
ATM Card management and Disposal Charges -
Total Fees and Commission Expense 616,252 3,386,154

4.33 Net Trading Income

Particulars 2077-78 2076-77
Changes in fair value of trading assets - -
Gain/loss on disposal of trading assets - -
Interest income on trading assets - -
Dividend income on trading assets - -
Gain/loss foreign exchange transation - -
Other - -
Net Trading Income - -

4.34 Other Operating Income

Particulars 2077-78 2076-77
Foreign exchange revauation gain - -
Gain/loss on sale of investment securities - -
Fair value gain/loss on investment properties
Dividend on equity instruments - -
Return from Corporate Social Responsibility Reserve - 51,000
Gain/loss on sale of property and equipment (479,185) (60,547)
Gain/loss on sale of investment property
Operating lease income

Gain/loss on sale of gold and silver
Other Operating Income

Share of Income of Associates - -
Total (479,185) (9,547)

4.35 Impairment charge/(reversal) for loan and other losses

Particulars 2077-78 2076-77
Impairment charge/(reversal) on loan and advances to BFls - -
Impairment charae/(reversal) on loan and advances to 3,639,089 65,179,893

Impairment charge/(reversal) on financial Investment - -
Impairment charge/(reversal) on placement with BFls
Impairment charge/(reversal) on property and equipment
Impairment charge/(reversal) on goodwill and intangible

Impairment charge/(reversal) on investment properties - -
Impairment charge/(reversal) on Other Assets - -
Total 3,639,089 65,179,893
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4.36 Personal Expenses
Particulars 2077-78 2076-77
Salary 88,217,890 84,540,809
Allowances 52,720,603 47,883,644
Gratuity Expense 13,228,377 13,304,800
Provident Fund 8,715,376 8,051,100
Uniform 1,812,000 1,911,000
Training & development expense 198,300 40,680
Leave encashment (203,054) 2,853,586
Medical 6,221,002 6,461,946
Insurance 2,162,035 1,447,796
Employees incentive -
Cash-settled share-based payments -
Pension expense -
Finance expense under NFRS 1,485,379 2,093,921
Other expenses related to staff -
Fuel & Maintenance Expense 15,100,556 12,955,490
Subtotal 189,658,463 181,544,772
Employees bonus 26,691,656 867,103
Grand Total 216,350,120 182,411,875
4.37 Other Operating Expenses
Particulars 2077-78 2076-77
Directors' fee 648,000 710,800
Directors' expense 99,864 103,178
Auditors' remuneration 355,498 398,305
Other audit related expense 825,694 532,171
Professional and legal expense 187,040 364,950
Office administration expense (4.37 A) 19,919,073 19,916,196
Operating Lease expense (4.37 B) 16,019,563 16,530,499
Operating expense of investment properties -
Corporate social responsibility expense 1,339,387 51,000
Donations 366,075 318,415
Credit Guarantee Premium 17,360,305 6,350,247
Onerous lease provisions -
Other Expenses 7,604,632 7,738,689
Repair & Maintenance Building - -
Repair & Maintenance Vehicle 148,922 397,136
Repair & Maintenance Others 1,286,563 958,966
Repair & Maint.. Office Equipment & Furniture 1,073,765 1,118,188
Share Issue Expenses 100,000 275,000
Kitchen Expenses 1,177,668 1,274,113
Software Maintenance Expense 3,186,600 3,464,580
Customer protection expenses - -
Local Transportation expenses 277,492 250,706
Techinical Fees 353,622 -
Total 64,725,130 53,014,449
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4.37 A Ofice Administration Expenses

Particulars 2077-78 2076-77
Insurance 31,073 36,818
Postage, Telephone, 2,082,331 2,437,659
Printing & Stationery 2,642,648 2,841,750
Newspaper & Periodicals 210,272 291,280
Advertisements 229,379 210,273
Travelling Expenses 1,732,776 1,560,268
Fuel Expenses 281,100 240,330
Entertainment 2,099,072 2,794,659
AGM Expenses 280,875 10,000
Annual Fee -
Office Expenses 8,414,888 8,618,291
Annual Meeting Fee - 34,199
Branch Opeining Expenses -
Local Tax and Rates 384,591 158,948
Business Promotion Expenses -
Fund Transfer Expenses -
Merger Expenses 257,809 -
Expense Not Capitalized -
Other 1,272,260 681,721
Total 19,919,073 19,916,196
4.37 B Operating Lease Expenses

Particulars 2077-78 2076-77
House Rent Expenses 13,636,924 14,221,460
Electricity Expenses 1,273,940 1,330,612
Security Expenses 1,108,700 978,427
Total 16,019,563 16,530,499
4.38 Depreciation and Amortisation

Particulars 2077-78 2076-77
Depreciation on property and equipment™ 3,423,385 4,377,107
Depreciation on investment property -
Amortisation of intangible assets -
Total 3,423,385 4,377,107
4.39 Non Operating Income

Particulars 2077-78 2076-77
Recovery of Loan written off 191,526 40,113
Other Income -
Total 191,526 40,113
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4.40 Non Operating expense

Particulars 2077-78 2076-77
Loan written off (6,769,380) -
Redundancy provision

Expense of restructuring

Other expense. -

Total (6,769,380) -
4.41 Income Tax Expenses

Particulars 2077-78 2076-77
Current Tax Expenses 89,063,690 8,690,796
Current Year 87,052,011 8,690,796
Adjustment for Prior Years 2,011,679 -
Deferred tax Expenses (3,407,716) (11,941,317)
Origination and Reversal of Temporary Differences (3,407,716) (11,941,317)
Change in tax Rate

Recognition of Previously unrecognized Tax Losses -
Total Income tax expense 85,655,975 (3,250,521)
4.41.1: Reconciliation of Tax Expenses and Accounting Profit

Particulars 2077-78 2076-77
Profit Before Tax 146,430,145 131,874,489
Tax Amount at the Rate of 30% 43,929,044 39,562,347
Add: Tax Effect of the expenses that are not -
deductible for tax purpose

Less: Tax Effect on Exempt Income -
Add/Less: Tax Effect on other Items 26,675,940 14,309,994
Total Income Tax Expenses 70,604,984 53,872,341
Effective Tax Rate 48.22% 40.85%
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Disclosures & Additional Information
Risk Management

In compliance with Nepal Rastra Bank Directive on 6 "Corporate Governance", the Board of bank has
established a Risk Management Committee with clear terms of reference. As at the date of this report,
the Bank’s Risk Management Committee comprised of the following:

S Members of Risk Management Committee Designation

Hari Krishna Subedi Chairperson

Prabin Bhattrai (resigned on 2077-12-03) Member

.N.

1

2 Binod Kumar Sharma Member

3

4 Shiva Prasad Acharya Member secretary

The Committee meets at least four times annually. The committee oversees and reviews the
fundamental prudential risks including operational, credit, market, reputational, capital and liquidity
risk etc.

The responsibilities of Risk Management Committee are as follows:

a. Formulate policies and guidelines for identification, measurement, monitoring and control all
major risk categories.

b. Ensuring the bank has clear, comprehensive and well documented policies and procedure.

Defining the bank’s overall risk tolerance in relation to credit risk.

d. Ensuring that bank’s significant risks exposure is maintained at prudent levels and consistent
with the available capital.

o

Apart from Board Level Risk Management Committee the other committees and groups as mentioned
below supports for Overall Risk Management.

Risk Governance

Risk management committee of the bank has formed to review the credit risk, market risk and liquidity
risk of the bank. Apart from this the bank has formed the Assets Liability Management Committee to
monitor Liquidity risk as well as market risk, AML CFT committee in order to monitor the operational
risk. The committee and subcommittee have effectively discharged their duties & responsibility.

Risk Management Department conducts periodical financial surveillance and monitoring. In addition
to this, the risk management committee analyse the Stress testing of the bank as required by Nepal
Rastra Bank and its impact and corrective action to mitigate the risk.

Through its risk management framework, the Bank seeks to efficiently manage credit, market and
liquidity risks which arise directly through the Bank’s commercial activities as well as operational,
regulatory and reputational risks which arise as a normal consequence of any business undertaking.
As part of this framework, the Bank uses a set of principles that describe its risk management culture.
The bank has developed Risk Management Policy, Guideline & Framework 2071 to manage Credit risk,
Market risk and liquidity risk.

The major risk areas and mitigation mechanism is as given below;
Credit Risk

Credit risk is the potential for loss due to failure of counterparty to meet its obligations to pay the
Bank in accordance with agreed terms.

The bank has Credit Policy Guidelines (CPG) that, inter alia, consist of areas of lending, eligibility of
borrower, loan application format and requirement, necessary documents for processing loans, risk
assessment areas, loan approval authority and other general credit principles. The CPG has been
formulated by keeping in mind the prudential norms given by NRB.
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2)

3)

4)

A standardized loan application forms has been in use for facilitating collection and analysis of all the
relevant data for evaluating credit worthiness and proper evaluation of the credit risk of the
prospective borrower. The factors considered in evaluating loan applications normally included
prospects of the business, management of the firm/company, financial analysis- income statement,
balance sheet, cash flow statement, key financial indicators, key risk and mitigates. Further, inspection
and supervision are also conducted before approval of the loan for pre-analysis and after the
disbursement of loan as well for monitoring the utilization of loan.

Operational Risk

Operational risk is the prospect of loss of resulting from inadequate or failed procedures, systems or
policies, employee errors, system failures, fraud or other criminal activity, any event that disrupts
business processes.

Operational risk exposures are managed through a consistent set of management processes that drive
risk identification, assessment, control and monitoring. For the control of operational risk of
institution, it has Financial Administration Policy, Employee Bylaws, operational manual, Annual
Planning, which guides the day to day operation.

Each risk control owner is responsible for identifying risks that are material and for maintaining an
effective control environment across the organization. Risk control owners have responsibility for the
control of operational risk arising from the management of the following activities: External Rules &
Regulations, Liability, Legal Enforceability, Damage or Loss of Physical Assets, Safety & Security,
Internal Fraud or Dishonesty, External Fraud, Information Security, Processing Failure, and Model.
Operational risks can arise from all business lines and from all activities carried out by the Bank.
Operational Risk management approach seeks to ensure management of operational risk by
maintaining a complete process universe defined for all business segments, products and functions
processes.

Market Risk

Risks arising out of adverse movements in interest rates and equity prices are covered under Market
Risk Management. Market Risk is the potential for loss of earnings or economic value due to adverse
changes in financial market rates or prices. Institution exposure to market risk arises principally from
customer driven transactions.

In line with Risk Management Guidelines prescribed by NRB, the Bank focuses on risk management in
addition to that Interest rate risk is assessed at a regular interval to strengthen market risk
management.

Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the potential that the Bank either does not have sufficient liquid financial resources
available to meet all its obligations as they fall due, or can only access these financial resources at
excessive cost.

Reputational Risk

Reputational risk is a risk of loss resulting from damages to reputation of institution, in lost revenue;
increased operating, capital or regulatory costs; or destruction of shareholder value. Reputational risk
is managed by the management committee which are responsible for protecting the institution’s
reputation locally and has the responsibility to ensure that the Bank does not undertake any activities
that may cause material damage to the reputation of institution.

Employee Benefit Risk

Employee benefit risk is the potential risk of loss due to having to meet shortfall in the Bank’s defined
benefits gratuity and leave encashment schemes. The gross obligation for gratuity is calculated
considering the salary at the time of retirement of the individual staff and number of years’ service
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7)
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with the Bank. The home leave can be accumulated for maximum period of 60 days for total period
served by individual staff. The gross obligation for leave encashment is calculated considering the last
drawn salary multiplied by no of eligible days for leave encashment.

Internal Control

The Board is committed to managing risks and in controlling its business and financial activities in a
manner which enables it to maximize profitable business opportunities, avoid or reduce risks which
can cause loss or reputational damage, ensure compliance with applicable laws and regulations and
enhance resilience to external events. To achieve this, the Board has adopted policies and procedures
of risk identification, risk evaluation, risk mitigation and control/monitoring.

The effectiveness of the Company’s internal control system is reviewed regularly by the Board, its
Committees, Management and Internal Audit. The Audit Committee has reviewed the effectiveness
of the Bank’s system of internal control during the year and provided feedback to the Board as
appropriate. The bank has outsourced the Internal Audit function to maintain independency on the
internal control system of institution. The Internal Audit monitors compliance with policies/standards
and the effectiveness of internal control structures across the Company through its program of
business/unit audits. The Internal Audit function is focused on the areas of greatest risk as determined
by a risk-based assessment methodology. Internal Audit reports are quarterly forwarded to the Audit
Committee. The findings of all audits are reported to the Chief Executive Officer and Business Heads
for initiating immediate corrective measures.

Any Other Risk
Compliance Risk

Compliance risk is the risk of legal or regulatory sanctions, material financial loss, or loss to reputation
due to failure to comply with laws, rules and standards.

NADEP is committed to follow the best practices and market standards in the areas of accountability,
transparency and business ethics. The Bank aims at a zero tolerance of misconduct and corruption.

Strategic Risk

Strategic risk is the risk in achieving Bank’s strategic objectives, both from internal and external events
and scenarios which prevent from achieving strategic objectives.

Strategic Risk can be further defined as:
e  Exposure to loss resulting from a strategy that runs out to be inappropriate.

e Risk associated with future plans and strategies, including plans for entering new services,
expanding existing services through enhancements and merger, enhancing infrastructures etc.

Current and prospective impact of strategic decisions made by management arising from adverse
business decisions, improper implementation of decisions or lack of responsiveness to industry change
etc.

Periodic (yearly) review of the strategy is being done by Management Committee and reported to
BOD regarding: status of the strategic objective’s achievement as decided, execution status whether
the right talent and infrastructures support the achievement of the objective or about unintended
consequences of the strategy, if any for their timely corrections/updates if found to be necessary.

Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk arises when there is a mismatch between positions, which are subject to interest rate
adjustment within a specified period. Interest rate risk is usually assessed from two common
perspectives. Earnings perspective, which focuses on the impact of variation in interest rate on
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accruals or reported earnings, and economic value perspective, which reflects the impact of
fluctuation in the interest rates on economic value of a financial institution.

The Bank measures and manages interest rate risk by estimating the sensitivity of the economic value
of its balance sheet to an interest rate shock. The sensitivity is measured by means of interest rates
on the present value of interest-bearing assets and liabilities.

AML/CFT Risk

AML/CFT risk is related with providing financial services to money launders and terrorists for
channelling of money derived from crime or aimed at funding terrorism. The strictness of the
provisions made in laws and directives reflect the seriousness of this issue; non-compliance of which
may cause significant reputational risk as well as may result in adverse consequences. Bank have been
closely monitoring the AML/CFT policies, procedures, guidelines and practices of Banks & Financial
Institutions (BFls).

Hierachy of fair value measurement of financial assets at fair value

Particulars 2077-78 2076-77
Level1 | Level 2 Level 3 Level 1 |Level 2 Level 3

Fair Value through profit or loss
Fair Value through OCI
Equity investments - 2,000,000 - 2,000,000
Fair Value of Financial Assets — Held
at Amortised Cost
Cash in hand 4,672,629 5,197,708
Balances with B/Fls 51,526,279 115,955,641
Money at call and short notice 154,752,687 446,916,045

Interbank placement

Balance at NRB

Derivative financial instrument

Loans & Advances

4,787,583,017

4,590,064,988

Government bonds

Government treasury bills

Equity investments

Other assets

1,196,282

1,298,097

Fair Value of Financial Liabilities —
Held at Amortised Cost

Deposits from customers

1,544,247,636

1,362,020,911

Due to Banks

Debt Securities

Employee related liabilities 48,808,180 25,952,341
Bills payable - -
Creditors and accruals 14,933,497 7,133,888
Interest payable on deposit 230,050,851 182,301,020
Interest payable on borrowing - -
Unpaid Dividend - -
Other liabilities 6,254,766 7,658,794
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5.2

Capital Management
Qualitative disclosures

The bank has maintained the capital adequacy as per Capital adequacy framework, as required by
Nepal Rastra Bank. The main objective of this framework is to develop a safe and sound financial
system by way of sufficient amount of qualitative capital and risk management practices. The total
equity of the bank comprises of paid up capital, statutory reserves and other reserves. The bank does
not have any other complex or hybrid capital instruments. Capital adequacy ratio as on Ashad end
2078 is 14.17% and 12.92% on core capital and capital fund respectively.

Assessment of capital adequacy of bank is done on regular basis taking into considerations the
exposure of bank. Also, the analysis of possible impact on capital adequacy is being done on regular
basis taking into consideration the future impacts on assumptive basis. Capital adequacy of bank and
impact in capital due to future change in nature and size of business is discussed in Risk Management
Committee and is summarized in board. Regular monitoring of nature of business is being done so
that unexpected negative impact could not take place in capital adequacy of bank. Reporting to
regulatory body is being done as prescribed by compliance department.

The internal capital adequacy assessment process (ICAAP) is a comprehensive process which requires
board and senior management oversight, monitoring, reporting and internal control reviews at regular
intervals to ensure the alignment of regulatory capital requirement with the true risk profile of the
bank and thus ensure long-term safety and soundness of the bank. The key components of an effective
ICAAP are discussed below.

Board and senior management oversight

Board and senior management oversight bank management is responsible for relates to adequate
capital levels. It is also responsible for ensuring that the formality and sophistication of the risk
management processes is commensurate with the complexity of its operations. A sound risk
management process, thus, is the foundation for an effective assessment of the adequacy of a bank’s
capital position.

The board of directors of the bank are responsible for setting the bank’s tolerance for risks. The board
also ensures that management establishes a mechanism for assessing various risks; develops a system
to relate these risks to the bank’s capital level and sets up a method for monitoring compliance with
internal policies. It is equally important that the board install’s strong internal controls and thereby an
effective control environment through adoption of written policies and procedures and ensures that
the policies and procedures are effectively communicated throughout the bank.

Sound Capital Assessment

Another crucial component of an effective ICAAP is the assessment of capital. In order to be able to

make a sound capital assessment the bank should, at minimum, have the following:

e Policies and procedures designed to ensure that the bank identifies, measures, and reports all
material risks;

e  Aprocess that relates capital to the level of risk;

e A process that states capital adequacy goals with respect to risk, taking account of the bank's
strategic focus and business plan; and

e Aprocess of internal control, reviews and audit to ensure the integrity of the overall management
process.

Comprehensive assessment of risk

All material risks faced by the bank should be addressed in the capital assessment process. Nepal
Rastra Bank recognizes that not all risks can be measured precisely. However, bank should develop a
process to estimate risks with reasonable certainties. In order to make a comprehensive assessment
of risks, the process should, at minimum, address the following forms of risk.
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1. Credit Risk
2. Credit Concentration Risk
3. Operational Risk
4.  Market Risk
5. Liquidity Risk
d. Monitoring and reporting

The bank has established an adequate system for monitoring and reporting risk exposures and

assessing how the bank’s changing risk profile affects the need for capital. The bank’s senior

management or board of directors, on a regular basis, receive reports on the bank’s risk profile and

capital needs. These reports allow senior management to:

e  Evaluate the level and trend of material risks and their effect on capital levels;

e Evaluate the sensitivity and reasonableness of key assumptions used in the capital assessment
measurement system;

e Determine that the bank holds sufficient capital against the various risks and is in compliance with
established capital adequacy goals; and

e Assess its future capital requirements based on the bank’s reported risk profile and make
necessary adjustments to the bank’s strategic plan accordingly.

e. Internal Control Review

The bank’s internal control structure is essential to a sound capital assessment process. Effective

control of the capital assessment process includes an independent review and, where appropriate,

the involvement of internal or external audits. The bank’s board of directors has a responsibility to

ensure that management establishes a system for assessing the various risks, develops a system to

relate risk to the bank’s capital level, and establishes a method for monitoring compliance with internal

policies. The board should regularly verify whether its system of internal controls is adequate to ensure

well-ordered and prudent conduct of business. The bank should conduct periodic reviews of its risk

management process to ensure its integrity, accuracy, and reasonableness. Key areas that should be

reviewed include:

e Appropriateness of the bank’s capital assessment process given the nature, scope and complexity
of its activities;

e |dentification of large exposures and risk concentrations;

e Accuracy and completeness of data inputs into the bank’s assessment process;

e Reasonableness and validity of scenarios used in the assessment process; and

e  Stress testing and analysis of assumptions and inputs.

S.N. Description Period
Current Year Previous Year
1 | Paid up Capital (ordinary shares) 404,800 368,000
2 | Proposed bonus share 80,960 36,800
3 | Share premium 0 0
4 [ Irredeemable preferential share 0 0
5 | General Reserve Fund 70,416 36,162
6 | Accumulated profit/loss (Retained earnings) 58,224 58,057
7 | Profit & loss a/c as per balance-sheet 27408.23 -1172.76
8 | Capital Redemption Reserve Fund 0 0
9 | Capital Adjustment Fund 0 0
10 | Calls in advance 0 0
11 | Other Free Reserves 44914.31 35,456.74
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. Period
SN Description Current Year Previous Year
Deductions: 0 0
a) Goodwill 0 0
b) Deferred tax assets 44,914 35,457
c) Investment on shares and securities in excess of limits 0 0
d) Investment to the company having financial interests 0 0
e) Fictitious Asset 0 0
f) Investment on land and building for self use not 0 0
complying the Directives of NRB
g) Investment on land development and housing 0 0
construction in excess of limits
h) Underwriting share not sold within the stipulated time 0 0
i) Credit and other facilities banned by the prevailing laws
Total Core Capital (A) 641,808 497,846
B. Supplementary capital
1 | Provisions of loan loss made for pass loan 18,643 47,448
2 | Additional loan loss provision 43,470 11,733
3 | Hybrid capital instruments -
4 | Unsecured Subordinated Term Debt -
5 | Exchange Equalization Fund - -
6 Assets revaluation Fund (max. 2% of Supplementary i i
capital is added automatically)
7 | Investment adjustment Fund
Total Supplementary Capital (B) 62,112 59,181
C. Total Capital Fund (A+B) 703,921 557,027
Minimum capital Fund to be maintained based on Risk
D. .
Weighted Assets:
3 | Capital Fund maintained (in %) 14.17 11.77
4 | Core Capital maintained (in %) 12.92 10.52
5 | Capital Fund surplus/(Deficit) 6.17 3.77
6 | Core Capital surplus/ (Deficit) 8.92 6.52
5.3  Classification of Financial Assets & Financial Liabilities
Fair value .
. . . through other Fair value )
Financial Assets Amortized Cost . through profit Total
comprehensive
income or loss
Cash in hand 4,672,629 4,672,629
Balances with B/Fls 51,526,279 51,526,279
Money at call and short notice 154,752,687 154,752,687
Interbank placement - -
Balance at NRB - -
Derivative financial instrument -
Loans & Advances 4,787,583,017 4,787,583,017
Government bonds - -
Government treasury bills - -
Equity investments 2,000,000 2,000,000
Other assets 1,196,282 1,196,282
Total Financial Assets 4,999,730,893 2,000,000 -|  5,001,730,893
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Fair value through

Financial Liabilities Amortized profit or loss (FVTPL) Total
Cost Held for | Designated
trading | atFVTPL

Deposits from customers

1,544,247,636

1,544,247,636

Due to Banks & Financial Institutions

Due to Nepal Rastra Banks

Debt Securities

Employee related liabilities 48,808,180 48,808,180
Bills payable - -
Creditors and accruals 14,933,497 14,933,497
Interest payable on deposit 230,050,851 230,050,851
Interest payable on borrowing - -
Unpaid Dividend - -
Liabilities under Operating Lease - -
Other liabilities 6,254,766 6,254,766
Total Financial Liabilities 1,844,294,929 - - | 1,844,294,929

54 Operating Segment Information
5.4.1 General Information
An operating segment is a component of an entity that engages in business activities from which it
may earn revenues and incur expenses (including revenues and expenses relating to transactions with
other components of the same entity) whose operating results are regularly reviewed by the entity’s
chief operating decision maker to make decisions about resources to be allocated to the segment and
assess its performance, and for which discrete financial information is available.
5.4.2 Information about Profit or Loss, Assets & Liabilities
S.No. Particulars Birtamode Biratnagar Area Hetauda Satdobato Area
Area Area
a Revenues from external
customers 98,347,854 187,975,685 147,510,665 116,676,309
b Intersegment revenues
C Net Revenue 86,267,906 138,616,496 124,677,792 114,515,639
d Interest revenue 85,264,604 138,064,715 123,859,026 113,192,743
e Interest expense 15,104,236 24,206,857 16,414,394 27,584,956
f Net interest revenue 68,324,864 111,352,298 108,138,423 85,583,694
g Depreciation and amortisation
h Segment profit /(loss) 68,324,864 111,352,298 108,138,423 85,583,694
i Entity"s interest in the profit or
loss of associates accounted for
using equity method
j Other material non-cash items:
Provision for loan loss
k Impairment of assets
| Segment assets 663,720,093 1,095,636,361 950,902,299 727,999,513
m Segment liabilities 636,277,263 1,034,173,567 910,580,601 703,570,706
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5.4.3 Measurement of Operating Segment Profit or Loss, Assets and Liabilities
The Bank has determined segments based on the geographical region i.e. Area wise.
5.4.4 Reconciliations of Reportable Segment Revenues, Profit or Loss, Assets and Liabilities

(a) Revenue

Total revenues for reportable segment 550,510,513
Other revenues 97,003,903
Elimination of intersegment revenues -
Entity’s revenues 647,514,416
(b) Profit or loss

Total profit or loss for reportable segments 467,200,070
Other profit or loss (406,425,899)
Elimination of intersegment profits -
Profit before income tax 146,430,145
(c) Assets

Total assets for reportable segments 3,438,258,266
Other assets 1,411,508,347
Unallocated amounts

Entity’s assets 4,849,766,613
(d) Liabilities

Total liabilities for reportable segments 3,284,602,137
Other liabilities 1,565,164,476
Unallocated liabilities

Entity’s liabilities 4,849,766,613

5.4.5 Information about Geographical Area

Revenue from following geographical areas:

(a) Domestic 550,510,513
Birtamode Area 98,347,854
Biratnagar Area 187,975,685
Hetauda Area 147,510,665
Satdobato Area 116,676,309

(b) | Foreign -
Total 550,510,513

5.4.6 Information about Major Customer

Revenue from single external customer is less than 10 percent of bank's total revenue.
5.5 Share Options and Share based Payment

The Bank does not have any share options and share based payments.
5.6 Contingent Liabilities and Commitment

Contingent Liabilities



99

5.7

Where the Bank undertakes to make a payment on behalf of its customers for guarantees issued for
which an obligation to make a payment has not arisen at the reporting date, those are included in

these financial statements as contingent liabilities

Commitments

Where the Bank has confirmed its intention to provide funds to a customer or on behalf of a customer
in the form of loans, overdrafts, future guarantees, whether cancellable or not and the Bank has not
made payments at the reporting date, those instruments are included in these financial statement as

commitments.

Particulars 2077-078 2076-077
Contingent liabilities

Undrawn and undisbursed facilities

Capital commitment

Lease Commitment

Litigation 11,303,806 9,494,088
Total 11,303,806 9,494,088

Related Party Disclosures

The Bank identifies the following as the related parties under the requirements of NAS 24.

a) Directors
b) Key Management Personnel of the Bank

c) Relatives of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel

FY 2077-78

FY 2076-77

Directors

Directors

Mr. Pitambar Prasad Acharya

Mr. Pitambar Prasad Acharya

Mr. Bed Prasad Shiwakoti

Mr. Bed Prasad Shiwakoti

Mr. Dipak Shrestha (Resigned on....)

Mr. Dipak Shrestha

Mr. Hari Krishna Subedi

Mr. Hari Krishna Subedi

Mr. Pravin Bhattrai (Resigned on 2077/12/03)

Mr. Pravin Bhattrai

Mr. Bibek Kandel

Mr. Bibek Kandel

Ms. Sofiya Acharya Rimal

Ms. Sofiya Acharya Rimal

Key Managerial Personnel

Key Managerial Personnel

Mr. Upendra Bahadur Karki

Mr. Upendra Bahadur Karki

Mr. Shiva Prasad Acharya

Mr. Amrit Prasad Rupakheti

Mr. Anish Paneru

Mr. Shiva Prasad Acharya

Mr. Baburam Subedi

Mr. Bisheswsor Pokhrel

Mr. Bhojraj Ghimire

Mr. Anish Paneru

Mr. Manish Kumar Chalise

Mr. Baburam Subedi
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Transaction during the Year
Particulars 2077-78 2076-77
Directors
Directors Sitting Fees 648,000 710,800
Interest Paid to directors on deposits
Other directors' expenses (if any) 99,864 103,178
Total 747,864 813,978
Key Management Personnel
Remuneration and Benefit Paid 8,810,269 8,481,105
Post-Retirement Benefits 1,101,425 10,392,003
Other Long-term Benefits
Borrowing during the year -
Interest on Borrowing 81,481 81,848
Interest on account balances
Other transactions benefits if any
Total 9,993,175 18,954,956
Reporting Date Balance
Particulars 2077-78 2076-77
Directors Deposits
KMP Deposits
Borrowings 1,192,960 1,714,979
Other Receivable payables if any
Total 1,192,960 1,714,979
5.8 Merger and Acquisition
MOU Signed for being Acquired by Deprosc Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited on 2077/09/15. LOI
form Nepal Rastra Bank have been received, Joint committee for merger have been formed, DDA for
swap rate determination is being done and suggestion with Nepal Rastra Bank has been seek for the
conversion of promoter share to public share to maintained the ratio of conversion to 51:49 and for
employee designations.
5.9 Additional Disclosure of Non-Consolidated Entities
Not Applicable.
5.10  Events After Reporting Date

Bank monitors and assesses events that may have potential impact to qualify as adjusting and/ or non-
adjusting events after the end of the reporting period. All adjusting events are adjusted in the books
with additional disclosures and non-adjusting material events are discloses in the notes with possible
financial impact, to the extent ascertainable.

There are no material events that have occurred subsequent to 31 Ashad 2078 till the signing of this
financial statement."
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5.11 Disclosure of effect of transition from previous GAAP to NFRSs
5.11.1. Reconciliation of equity
As at 31.03.2076
(End of last As at As at
Particulars Expla- period 31.03.2077 31.03.2078
natory
Note presented under
previous GAAP)
Total equity under Previous GAAP 547,814,391 626,336,018 772,791,428
Adjustments under NFRSs:
Impairment on loan and advances - - -
Fair value & employees benefit accounting of
staff loan -
Lease accounting 1 - -
Measurement of investment securities measured
at fair value -
Measurement of investment securities measured
at fair value in associates 2 - - -
Dividend Income from Associates - -
Revaluation of property & equipment
Recognition of investment property
Amortisation of debt securities issued
Deferred tax 3 (9,167,510) (767,677) (13,360,054)
Defined benefit obligation of employees 4,639,604 2,558,922 29,271,004
Goodwill/Bargain purchase gain
Interest income 5 47,522,906 176,347,154 77,648,713
Other
Proposed Dividend 6 1,936,842 1,936,842 4,261,053
Total Adjustment to equity 44,931,842 180,075,242 97,820,716
Total Equity under NFRSs 592,746,233 806,411,260 870,612,144
5.11.2. Reconciliation of profit or loss
. Explanato As at As at
Particulars pNote K 31.03.2077 31.03.2078
Previous GAAP 1,852,714 160,618,786
Adjustments under NFRSs:
Interest income 5 130,918,169 (97,213,062)
Impairment of loan and advances - -
Employees benefit amortisation under staff loan 7 (2,093,921) (1,485,379)
Defined benefit obligation of employee 4 (5,159,347) 4,903,684
Operating lease expense 1 - -
Provision for Investment 8 - -
Income from Investment in Associates 2 - -
Gain on Sales of Share Investment Classified to OCI 9 - -
Current Tax on Gain on Sales of Share Investment Classified to OCI 10 - -
Amortisation expense of debt securities - -
Other operating income - -
Share issue expenses directly charged to equity 11 405,660 -
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. Explanato As at As at
Particulars pNote K 31.03.2077 31.03.2078
Share issue expenses directly charged to equity-Tax Impact 12 (121,698) -
Interest expense - -
Depreciation & Amortisation - -
Others - -
Deferred Tax 3 9,323,433 (6,049,858)
Total Adjustment to profit or loss 133,272,296 (99,844,615)
Profit or loss under NFRSs 135,125,010 60,774,171
Other Comprehensive Income 2,155,066 15,265,879
Total Comprehensive income under NFRSs 137,280,075 76,040,050

Note

1)  Rent Expenses booked over the rent period on equal amount on SLM Basis

3) Deferred Tax effect of all adjustment

4)  Gratuity Expenses booked as per acturial valuation

5)  Accrued Interest Receivable booked on accrual basis which in approximate to Effective Interest Rate

6)  Liability Created for Proposed Dividend Reversed

7)  Interest on Staff loan charged to finance income and staff cost

8) Investment Provision made in P/L of local gap reversed and charged to OCI for investment classified as Fair value through OCI
9)  Gain on Sell of share classified to OCI charged directly to equity

) Avoidable Share issue expenses directly charged to equity
12) Tax effect of Avoidable Share issue expenses directly charged to equity

10) Tax effect of Gain on Sell of share classified to OCI charged directly to equity
1
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5.11.4. Effect of NFRSs adoption for statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income

As at 31.03.2078 (End of last period

Expla- presented under previous GAAP)
Particulars natory . Effect of
Note Previous Transition to Amount as per
GAAP NERS NFRS

Interest Income 744,727,479 (97,213,062) 647,514,416
Interest Expense (268,187,538) (7,104,098)| (275,291,636)
Net Interest Income 476,539,941 104,317,160 372,222,780
Fee and Commission Income 70,018,381 - 70,018,381
Fee and Commission Expense 616,252 - 616,252
Net Fee and Commission Income 69,402,129 - 69,402,129
Net Interest, Fee and Commisson Income 545,942,069 104,317,160 441,624,909
Net Trading Income - - -
Other Operating Income (479,185) - (479,185)
Total Operating Income 545,462,884 104,317,160 441,145,724
Impairment Charge/ (Reversal) for Loans and Other Losses 3 3,639,089 - 3,639,089
Net Operating Income 541,823,795 104,317,160 437,506,635
Operating Expense
Personnel Expenses 226,872,523| (10,522,402) 216,350,120
Other Operating Expenses 5 64,725,130 - 64,725,130
Depreciation & Amortisation 3,423,385 - 3,423,385
Operating Profit 246,802,757 93,794,758 153,007,999
Non Operating Income - 191,526 191,526
Non Operating Expense (6,577,854) (191,526) (6,769,380)
Profit Before Income Tax 240,224,903 93,794,758 146,430,145
Income Tax Expense

Current Tax 89,063,690 - 89,063,690

Deferred Tax (9,457,574) 6,049,858 (3,407,716)
Profit for the Period 160,618,786 99,844,616 60,774,170

(1)

Other Comprehensive Income, Net of Income Tax
a) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
¢ Gains/(losses) from investment in equity instruments
measured at fair value - - -
¢ Gains/(losses) on revaluation - - -
e Acturial gain/(losses) on defined benefit plans - 21,808,398 21,808,398
¢ Income tax relating to above items - (6,542,519) (6,542,519)
Net other comprehensive income that will not be
reclassified to profit or loss - 15,265,879 15,265,879

b) Items that are or may be reclassified to profit or loss

¢ Gains/(losses) on cash flow hedge

¢ Exchange gains/(losses)(arising from translating financial
assets of foreign operation)

¢ Income tax relating to above items

e Reclassify to profit or loss
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As at 31.03.2078 (End of last period
Expla- presented under previous GAAP)
Particulars natory . Effect of
Note Previous Transition to Amount as per
GAAP NERS NFRS
Net other comprehensive income that are or may be
reclassified to profit or loss - - -
c) Share of other comprehensive income of associate
accounted as per equity method
Other Comprehensive Income for the Period, Net of
Income Tax - 15,265,879 15,265,879
Total Comprehensive Income for the Period 160,618,786 | 115,110,495 76,040,049

Notes

1) Interest Receivable on loan has been booked on accrual basis and interest difference in staff loan has also been charged.
2) Interest expense on calculation of Gratuity expense

3) Reversal of Loan loss provision

4) Bonus has been charged as staff expense and finance cost of staff loan has also been charged.

5) Rent expense has been charged on SLM basis

6) Income tax related to share issue expense and gain on sale of investment reclassified through equity.

7) Deferred Tax effect of all adjustment

8) Actuarial Gain/ loss recognized in OCI of Gratuity Liability

9) Deferred Tax Adjustment on item of OCI

5.12

5.13

5.14

5.15

5.16
5.16.1.

Change in Estimate
There is no change in estimate during current year.
Proposed Dividend

The Bank has proposed of 20% Bonus share and 1.053% Cash Dividend (for tax purpose) on Share
capital as on Ashad end 2077.

Earnings per share

The Bank measures earning per share on the basis of the earning attributable to the equity
shareholders for the period. The number of shares is taken as the weighted average number of shares
for the relevant period as required by NAS 33: Earnings per Share.

Particulars 2077-778 2076-77
Earning attributable to equity shareholders (NPR) 60,774,170.58 135,125,009.76
Weighted average number of shares for the period 4048,000 3,680,000
Basic Earnings Per Share (NPR) 15.01 36.72

Loan Written off

During the FY 2077/78 the bank has written off overdue loan exceeding 5 years of Rs. 6,769,380 during
the current fiscal year.

Reserves
General Reserve

The movement in general reserve during the year is as follows;

Opening Balance 36,161,556
Transfer as per BAFIA 32,123,757
50% of excess of 20% of dividend 2,130,526
Closing Balance 70,415,839
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¢
General Reserve maintained pertains to the regulatory requirement of the Bank and Financial
Institutions Act, 2073. There is a regulatory requirement to set aside 20% of the net Profit to the
general reserve until the reserve is twice the paid-up capital and thereafter minimum 10% of the net
Profit.
20% of the current year's net profit amounting to NPR 32,123,757 has been transferred to General
Reserve and 50% of excess of 20% of dividend Rs. 2,130,526
5.16.2. Regulatory Reserve
Regulatory reserves include any amount derived as result of NFRS conversion and adoption with effect
in retained earnings and deferred tax reserves. As required by NRB Directive 4, the Bank has created
Regulatory Reserve and movement of reserve during the year is as follows:
Particulars Amounts
Opening Balance 166,365,363
Transfer from RE to Regulatory Reserve against NBA -
Transfer from RE to Regulatory Reserve against Deferred Tax 10,225,250
Transfer from RE to Regulatory Reserve against Actuary Reserve (15265879)
Transfer from RE to Regulatory Reserve against FV Reserve
Transfer from RE to Regulatory Reserve against Interest Receivable (621,80,018)
Closing Balance 99,144,716
5.16.3. Corporate Social Responsibility
Particulars Amounts
Opening Balance 1,339,387
Transfer to CSR Fund 1,606,188
Transfer/Utilization from CSR Fund 1,339,387
Closing Balance 1,606,188
As per the NRB Directive 6.16 on the Corporate Social Responsibility, the Bank has allocated 1% of the
net profit after tax of current fiscal year for CSR activities. The amount allocated for corporate social
responsibility reserve is NPR 1,606,188 for current year.
5.17  Disclosure related to Training Expenses
As per NRB Directive 6(6), Bank should spend 3% of total personnel expense of previous year on
training and personal development of employees. Accordingly, the Bank has spent NPR 198,300 during
the FY 2077/78 on development of human resources.
5.18  Previous Year Figures are re-grouped and re-arranged wherever necessary as follows:

Previous year figures are regrouped and rearranged wherever necessary for better presentation.
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